
Summons to Meeting

Tuesday 27 August 2019

Executive
Wednesday 4 September 2019, 4.00 pm

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Chair) Councillor Mark Jenkinson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor John Cook Councillor Mike Johnson
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Paul Scott
Councillor Stephen Stoddart

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 2)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6 August 2019.

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Members' Announcements  

6. Quarter 1 Finance Report April to June 2019  (Pages 3 - 38)



7. Council Plan Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20  (Pages 39 - 66)

8. Review of Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Policy  (Pages 67 - 78)

Chief Executive

Date of Next Meeting:

Monday 16 September 2019, 4.00 pm
Allerdale House, Workington



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Tuesday 6 August 2019 at 4.00 pm

Members

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Chair) Councillor Mark Jenkinson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor John Cook Councillor Mike Johnson
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Paul Scott
Councillor Stephen Stoddart

Staff Present

B Carlin, I Frost, A Gilbert, C Holmes, J Irving, L Jardine, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, 
G Roach, A Seekings, S Sewell and P Wood

101. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 June were signed as a correct record.

102. Declaration of Interests 

6. Delivery options for Waste and Recycling Service.
Councillor Mark Jenkinson; Other Interest; Due to a personal relationship 
associated with the Contractor.

6. Delivery options for Waste and Recycling Service.
Councillor Paul Scott; Other Interest; Due to a personal relationship 
associated with the Contractor.

103. Questions 

None received.

104. Members' Announcements 

None received.

Resolved - 

“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.”

Councillors M Jenkinson and P Scott left the meeting  

105. Delivery options for Waste and Recycling Service 

The subject of the decision

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



The Head of Community Services submitted a report, which sought to provide 
members with a review of options for the short-term management of the waste 
and recycling contract and an options appraisal for longer-term service delivery 
models.              

Members considered the information and legal advice provided in the report and 
asked questions of the Officers present.

Councillor G Kemp moved the motion with the addition of a third 
recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor M Johnson. The 
recommendations were unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

A review of options for the short-term management of the waste and recycling 
contract were detailed in the report.

The reason for the decision

To establish cost effective waste and recycling services in Allerdale delivering to 
the needs of the local community.

The decision

Resolved

That –

1. The emergency solution and the resources required be approved,

2. The outline options appraisal be approved and to continue work to 
detailed options including only three potential options,

3. The Head of Community Services be authorised to finalise negotiations 
on the interim agreement in consultation with the Executive.

The meeting closed at 4.40 pm

Page 2



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 4 September 2019
Quarterly Finance Report April to June 2019

The Reason for the Decision Quarterly Finance Report April to June 2019 
[Quarter 1]

Summary of options considered This report informs members of the Council’s 
financial performance against budget for the 
period April to June 2019 along with the 
forecast position to 31 March 2020.

Recommendations That the contents of the report are noted.

Financial / Resource Implications Financial issues and implications are included 
within the main body of this report.

Legal / Governance Implications None directly

Community Safety Implications None directly
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Regular monitoring of financial performance 
forms an integral part of the framework of 
financial controls and procedures used by the 
Council to manage financial risks.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

N/A

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision 
would make to the Council’s 
priorities

Sound financial management is essential to 
successful delivery of the Council’s financial 
plans, achievement of value for money and the 
stewardship and safeguarding of public money.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Mike Johnson

Lead Officer Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services
catherine.nicholson@allerdale.co.uk

Page 3

Agenda Item 6

mailto:catherine.nicholson@allerdale.co.uk


Report Implications 

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal N Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1. Introduction

1.1 The Council’s Financial Regulations require the Section 151 Officer (Head of 
Financial Services) to report regularly, (at least quarterly) to Executive, the 
latest financial position against budget.

1.2 This report outlines for the Council’s revenue budget (section 2) and capital 
budget (section 6):

 actual (net) expenditure during the period April to June 2019

 the projected net expenditure (full year forecast/forecast outturn) 
against budget for the year to 31 March 2020 (section 2)

 reasons for significant variances (+/- £30k) between the full year 
forecast actual expenditure and the approved estimates (budget) for 
2019-20.

1.3 This report also provides:

 details of forecast expenditure on projects funded from earmarked 
reserves (section 4)

 a summary forecast income from business rates, council tax and 
non-specific (un-ringfenced) grants (section 5) 

 a summary of the impact of the forecast outturn position on 
earmarked reserves and general fund balances (section 7)

 details of treasury management activity and confirmation of 
compliance with the Treasury and Prudential Indicators included in 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (section 8)

 an overview of insurance activity during the period (section 9)

 performance information relating to sundry debtors income and write 
offs, payment of creditor invoices and the collection of council tax 
and business rates income (section 10).

Page 4



Key Messages
1.4 The headline messages at the end of quarter 1 of 2019-20 are:

Revenue Budget
(i) Expenditure from the revenue budget, excluding projects funded 

from earmarked reserves, is forecast to exceed budget by £104k 
(ii) This projected outturn position would result in an additional  

contribution from the Council’s General Fund of £104k
Earmarked Reserves Budget

(iii) Following publication of the 2018-19 outturn position, the budgeted 
use of Reserves has been increased to reflect the reprofiling of 
expenditure presented as part of that report 

(iv) There is an adverse variance projected against this updated budget 
of £3k.
Capital Budget

(v) Expenditure from the capital budget is forecast to underspend by 
£7.165 million
Treasury Management

(vi) Treasury management activities during the quarter were carried out 
in accordance with the Council’s treasury management and 
investment strategies and within the limits established by the 
approved treasury and prudential indicators for 2019-20

(vii) No new external borrowing was undertaken during the three months 
ending 30 June.

Page 5



2. Summary of Projected Revenue Outturn Position

2.1 Table 1 shows, as at the end of June 2019, the Council's overall projected 
2019-20 revenue outturn position. It shows: 

 net budgeted expenditure on services of £15 million

 total budgeted net expenditure including expenditure met from 
earmarked reserves)of £16.7million

 projected outturn on services (including contributions to reserves) of 
£15.107 million

 a projected overspend on services for the year to March 2020 of £104k

 projected variance against the earmarked reserves budget (updated to 
reflect the 2018-19 outturn position) of £3k.

Table 1 - Summary of Projected Outturn against Annual Budget
Budget

£’000

Projected
Outturn

£’000

Projected 
Variance

£’000

Report 
Ref.

Net Expenditure on Services 12,805 12,909 104

Parish Precepts 2,198 2,198 0

Net Expenditure on Services 15,003 15,107 104 Section 3

Expenditure on Earmarked Priorities 1,705 1,708 3

Total Net Expenditure 16,708 16,815 107

Less: Planned use of earmarked balances (1,705) (1,708) (3) Section 4 

Net Budget Requirement/ Outturn 15,003 15,107 104

Funding:

Taxation & Government Grants 12,433 12,433 0 Section 5

Parish Precepts 2,198 2,198 0

Contribution from/to General Fund 372 476 104 Section 7

Total Funding 15,003 15,107 104

2.2 To balance the Council’s budget, the projected overspend of £104k will 
require a corresponding increase in the contribution from the Council’s 
General Fund balance. This will increase the total General Fund contribution 
from £372k to £476k.

Page 6



3. Analysis of Net Expenditure on Services against Budget

3.1 A summary of the projected outturn variance (£104k) by portfolio is shown in 
Table 2.

Table 2 – Summary of variance by Portfolio
Annual 
Budget

Projected 
Outturn

Planned 
contribution 
to reserve 

Projected 
Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Leader of the Council 1,418 1,441 0 23
Economic Growth (1,397) (1,400) 0 (3)
Corporate Resources 5,937 5,754 0 (183)
Housing, Health & Well-being 916 937 0 21
Environmental Quality 2,103 2,297 25 219
Governance & People Resources 1,299 1,361 0 62
Tourism & Culture 416 405 0 (11)
Transformation 2,113 2,089 0 (24)
Parish Precepts 2,198 2,198 0 0

Total 15,003 15,082 25 104

3.2 A breakdown and analysis of significant variances (i.e. full year forecast of +/- 
£30k) by portfolio area is set out in the following paragraphs.

Economic Growth Portfolio

3.3 The forecast net variance against the Economic Growth portfolio budget is 
£3,547 (favourable). Significant variances underlying the current forecast 
outturn position are summarised in the following table.

Table 3 – Economic Growth significant variances

Service/Activity

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Planned 
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Building Control - Chargeable (43,534) 0 (43,534)

Planning and Development 49,661 0 49,661

Sub Total 6,127 0 6,127

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (9,674) 0 (9,674)

Total variance (3,547) 0 (3,547)

Page 7



Building Control - Chargeable: (favourable variance £43,534)

3.4 Building Control income is inherently volatile in nature being a demand led 
service, therefore further forecast changes are expected throughout the year.  
The current variance of £44k (favourable) is based on comparing trends from 
previous years and actuals from first quarter of 2019/20.

Planning and Development (adverse variance £49,661)

3.5 The current £49k under recovery of expected planning income is based on a 
national assumption that there will be a reduction in major planning 
applications received this year.  Early indications are that there will be 3 major 
applications over £20k this year in comparison to 5 received in 2018/19.  
However, this is a demand led service which could result in further changes to 
the forecast as the year progresses.

Corporate Resources Portfolio

3.6 The forecast net variance against the Corporate Resources portfolio is 
£183,352 (favourable). Significant variances underlying the current forecast 
position are summarised in the following table.

Table 4 – Corporate Resources significant variances

Service/Activity

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Planned 
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Banking and Interest (122,103) 0 (122,103)

MRP – Finance Charges (108,481) 0 (108,481)

Sub Total (230,584) 0 (230,584)

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 47,232 0 47,232
Total variance (183,352) 0 (183,352)

Banking and Interest (favourable variance £122,103)

3.7 The current outturn forecast for interest payable is based on the Authority’s 
existing loan portfolio plus the additional borrowing required in 2019-20. 

3.8 Changes to the timing of capital expenditure and other positive in year cash 
flows, enabled the Council to meet its liquidity requirements by utilising cash 
from reserves, revenue balances and favourable in year cash flows, without 
the need undertake any additional external borrowing. This has had a positive 
impact on the expected interest costs in 2019-20. In addition borrowing 
delayed to 2019-20 will benefit from reduced interest rates.

3.9 Pending review of the capital budget as part of the revised budget process, no 
allowance has been included in the forecasted interest costs to accommodate 
the impact of anticipated underspends against the 2019-20 capital budget, 

Page 8



reprofiling adjustments or other possible revisions to the existing three year 
capital programme. 

MRP – Financing Charges (favourable variance £108,481)

3.10  Capital expenditure in 2018-19 was less than anticipated, this has reduced 
the corresponding MRP charge for 2019-20. 

Environmental Quality Portfolio

3.11 The forecast net variance against the Environmental Quality portfolio budget 
is £218,750 (adverse). Significant variances underlying the current forecast 
position are summarised in the following table.

Table 5 – Environmental Quality significant variances

Service/Activity

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Planned 
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Recycling 110,786 0 110,786

Waste Contract – Mobilisation 130,712 0 130,712

Sub Total 241,498 0 241,498

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k (47,748) 25,000 (22,748)

Total variance 193,750 25,000 218,750

Recycling (adverse variance of £110,786)

3.12 The adverse variance of £110k is mostly due to two significant adverse 
variances. 

 The collection of co-mingled (glass, cans and plastics) and garden 
waste has been suspended during July and August.  The overall 
reduction in tonnages collected will impact on the disposal costs, sales 
income and recycling credits received. The anticipated result is an 
adverse net variance against budget of £59k. 

 Based on current collection rates the amount of paper and card 
collected during the financial year is expected to be lower than budget 
(circa 280 tonne). This reduction accompanied by a lower than 
expected sales price per tonne will result in an adverse variance of 
£55k. 

Waste contract Mobilisation (adverse variance of £130,712)
3.13 Current projections show that one-off expenditure for the mobilisation of the 

waste contract will be circa. £214k, exceeding budget by £131k. The following 
table provides a breakdown of this overspend.

Page 9



Table 6 – Breakdown of Waste Mobilisation Overspend
Budget Projected 

Outturn VarianceDetail
£'000 £'000 £'000

External Professional Advice 0 46 46
Vehicle Costs (hire/misc costs) 33 31 (2)
Additional Staffing 50 110 60
External Communications - Suspension of Service 0 21 21
Misc. Costs 0 6 6
Total 83 214 131 

3.14 The need for external professional advice in connection with the waste service 
contract has continued into this financial year. Current projections show that 
this advice will cost the Council approximately £46k.

3.15 Due to a significant increase in queries received relating to waste services the 
number of temporary staff required to investigate and respond to these has 
increased from original expectations. The suspension of co-mingled and 
green waste recycling services has also required these temporary staff to be 
retained for longer than originally anticipated.

3.16 The cost of external communications in connection with the suspension of co-
mingled and green waste recycling services has reached £21k to date. Any 
future communications will increase the adverse variance on this cost centre. 

Governance & People Resources Portfolio

3.17 The forecast net variance against the Governance & People Resources 
portfolio is £61,510 (adverse). Significant variances underlying the current 
forecast position are summarised in the following table.

Table 7 – Governance & People Resources significant variances

Service/Activity

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Planned 
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Legal Costs – Community Stadium 34,737 0 34,737

Sub Total 34,737 0 34,737

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 26,773 0 26,773
Total variance 61,510 0 61,510

Legal Costs - Stadium (adverse variance £34,737)
Total 83.0 213.8 130.8 

Page 10



Transformation Portfolio

3.18 The forecast net variance against the Transformation portfolio budget is 
£23,022 (favourable). Significant variances underlying the current forecast 
position are summarised in the following table.

Table 8 – Transformation significant variances

Service/Activity

Gross 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Planned 
Contr. to 
Reserves

£

Net 
Variance 
adverse/ 

(favourable)
£

Customer & Transformation Pay Group (30,500) 0 (30,500)

Sub Total (30,500) 0 (30,500)

Activity variances not exceeding +/- £30k 7,478 0 7,478

Total variance (23,022) 0 (23,022)

Customer & Transformation Pay Group (favourable variance of £30,500)

3.19 The favourable variance of £30.5k is due to delayed recruitment of two key 
positions. The posts currently remain vacant resulting in an underspend on 
this cost centre.

Other portfolios

3.20 At the end of quarter 1 there were no significant variances (i.e. variances of 
+/- £30k) to report within the following portfolios:

 Leader of the Council
 Housing, Health and Well-being
 Tourism & Culture

Page 11



4. Projects funded from Earmarked Reserves 
4.1 At 1 April 2019 the balance held in earmarked reserve was £3,467k and 

comprises:
 £2,418k held for service expenditure
 £1,049k held for accounting purposes or as contingency against 

specified risks

4.2 Against the balance of £2,418k (reserves held for service expenditure) the 
profiled spend identified for 2019-20, presented as part of the 2018-19 outturn 
report, is £1,705k. The remaining balance is profiled to be spent in 
subsequent financial years. 

4.3 The current projected outturn for 2019-20 is £1,708k. This requires a £3k 
increase in the amount released from earmarked reserves at the year end. 

Table 9 - Summary of projected expenditure from earmarked reserves
Reserve  
Balance
1-4-2019

Profiled  
Budget 
2019-20

Projected 
outturn VarianceReserve Funded projects 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Leader of the Council 332 280 280 0
Economic Growth 198 11 11 0
Corporate Resources 636 270 273 3
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 511 511 511 0
Environmental Quality 164 114 114 0
Governance & People Resources 259 259 259 0
Tourism & Culture 58 58 58 0
Transformation 260 202 202 0
Total held for service expenditure 2,418 1,705 1,708 3
Accounting/Contingency reserves 1,049 0 0 0
Total Reserves 3,467 1,705 1,708 3

4.4 All earmarked reserves will be reviewed as part of the revised budget process 
to ensure they continue to reflect Council priorities and that the balance 
remains at the appropriate level. 

Page 12



5. Taxation and Non-specific grant income

5.1 Details of the Council’s taxation and non-specific grant income and 
expenditure for the year compared with budget, are shown in the following 
table. This includes income received from:

 Non-ring fenced government grants such as Revenue Support Grant 
and New Homes Bonus 

 Council tax and Non Domestic Rates (NNDR).

Table 10 -Taxation and Non-specific grant income
Budget 

£’000

Forecast
Outturn

£’000

Variance

£’000
Revenue support grant 196 196 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant 326 326 0

New Homes Bonus 838 838 0

Council tax – excluding parish element 5,304 5,304 0

Collection fund surplus/(deficit) - Council Tax 37 37 0

NNDR funding 5,732 5,732 0

12,433 12,433 0

5.2 Taxation and Non-specific grant income are currently expected to be in line 
with budget. 

5.3 The most volatile area of funding in-year remains the National Non Domestic 
Rates. A summary of the NNDR income included in the 2019-20 budget and 
the projected income to be credited to the Council’s general fund in 2019-20, 
is shown in the table below.

Table 11- NNDR funding 2019-20 

Funding element
Approved

Budget 
£’000

Projected 
Outturn £’000

Variance 

£’000
Fixed Elements:
Allerdale Share of NNDR Income 10,802 10,802 0
Renewable Energy ‘disregard’ retained by billing 
authority 411 411

0
Net tariff payable to Central Government (7,299) (7,299) 0
Share of estimated collection fund surplus 13 13 0
‘Fixed’ element of NNDR income 3,927 3,927 0
Variable Elements:
Section 31 grant 2,280 2,280 0

Levy payable (net of reduction under pool 
arrangements) (475) (475) 0

Variable element of NNDR income 1,805 1,805 0
Total Fixed & Variable Elements 5,732 5,732 0

Page 13



6. Capital budget

6.1 The current capital budget is £12.37m, comprising:
 £9.93m approved budget for 2019-20
 £2.44m budget carry forward from 2018-19

6.2 The projected Capital Outturn position for 2019-20 is summarised in table 11. 
This shows:

 a projected outturn position of £5.21m.
 an underspend compared to the budget of £7.17m. 
 budget carry forward requests (re-profiling adjustments) of £2.17million
 overall adverse variance of £4.997m.

Table 12 –Capital Programme – Projected Outturn by Portfolio
Current 
Budget

Outturn Outturn 
Variance

Re-
profiled

Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Capital Expenditure
Economic Growth 8,074 906 (7,168) 2,168 (5,000)

Corporate Resources 373 373 0 0 0
Housing, Health & Wellbeing 2,124 2,127 3 0 3
Environmental Quality 630 630 0 0 0
Tourism & Culture 1,131 1,131 0 0 0
Transformation 40 40 0 0 0
Total - Capital Expenditure 12,372 5,207 (7,165) 2,168 (4,997)
Capital Financing      

Capital Grants 3,949 2,681 (1,268) 1,271 3

Capital Receipts 455 455 0 0 0
Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Budget 0 0 0 0 0
General Fund Balances 138 138 0 0 0
Borrowing 7,830 1,933 (5,897) 897 (5,000)
Total - Capital Funding 12,372 5,207 (7,165) 2,168 (4,997)

Key Variances

6.3 Details of key variances are set out in the following paragraphs.

Economic Growth Portfolio

6.4 The forecast variance against the capital budget for the Economic Growth 
portfolio is £7.168m. Budget carry forwards of £2.168m leaves an overall 
projected favourable variance of £5m.

Page 14



Table 13 Economic Growth 
Outturn 
Variance

Budget 
C/F

Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000
Reedlands Road Development (2,168) 2,168 0

Community Stadium (5,000) 0 (5,000)

Total (7,168) 2,168 (5,000)

Reedlands Road Development (underspend of £2,168k to be carried 
forward to 2020-21)

6.5 The budget for this scheme was based on the initial profile estimates provided 
by the External Project Manager. The expenditure profile has been revised to 
take account of the requirements to undertake additional surveys prior to 
commencing construction. 

Community Stadium (underspend £5,000k)

6.6 Plans for the Community Stadium have been placed on hold pending 
completion of ongoing work on the business case, as agreed by Executive on 
28 June 2019. This will result in a projected underspend for 2019-20 of £5m.
Additional Information relating to the capital budget

6.7 Although not reported as a variance at quarter 1, the Disabled Facility Grant 
scheme warrants additional information. 

Housing Grants 

6.8 The Authority provides grants to individuals to meet the cost of housing 
adaptations and improvements that enable people to stay living in their own 
home for longer. This includes mandatory and discretionary grant support. 

6.9 The Authority has a statutory duty to provide adaptations to the homes of 
disabled people who qualify for a mandatory DFG. Expenditure on DFGs is 
funded from an annual grant paid to upper-tier authorities as part of the Better 
Care Funding allocations and cascaded to district councils responsible for 
providing DFGs.

6.10 Since approving the 2019-20 Budget the Authority has received notification 
that the grant allocation from central government for DFGs for 2019-20 has 
been increased. The capital expenditure budget will be increased at revised 
budget to take account of this increased grant. The movement in resources 
statement at appendix D4 reflects the increase in DFG allocation from Central 
Government for 2019-20. These resources will remain unallocated. 

6.11 The Authority will continue to monitor the DFG budget closely and action 
taken to ensure that spending does not exceed available funding.

Page 15



7. Impact on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve Balances

7.1 The impact of current budget forecasts on the Council’s general fund and 
earmarked general fund balances (earmarked reserves) is summarised in the 
following table. The opening balance and budget use of reserve (Current 
Budget) has been updated to reflect the position reported as part of the 2018-
19 outturn. 

Table 14 - Movement in Balances
Current Budget Projected Outturn

General 
Fund

Earmarked 
Reserves

General 
Fund

Earmarked 
Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Opening Balances April 2019 3,890 3,467 4,044 3,467
Transfers to/(from) Reserves:
Release of E/M to GF 0 0 0 0
Use for capital programme (138) 0 (138) 0
Use to support Revenue Budget (372) (1,705) (476) (1,708)

Planned to Earmarked Reserves 0 60 0 25
Requested to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0
Additional Taxation and Government 
Grants to Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0

(Increase)/Decrease in Balance (510) (1,645) (614) (1,683)

Balance at 31 March 2020 3,380 1,822 3,430 1,784

Retained - Minimum Balance (2,700) - (2,700) -

Available for Use 680 1,822 730 1,784

Impact on General Fund Balances

7.2 This reserve plays an important part in managing unforeseen risk and cash 
flow management of the Authority. At the end of quarter 1 the projected 
revenue and capital outturns for the year to March 2020 will result in a net 
reduction in the Council’s general fund balance of £614k compared to the 
reduction of £510k reported as part of the 2018-19 outturn position. 

Impact on Earmarked Reserves

7.3 The profiled spend (budget) from earmarked reserves for 2019-20 has been 
updated from £395k (approved March 2019) to £1,705k. The increase of 
£1,310k reflects the reprofile of planned expenditure, funded from earmarked 
reserves, approved as part of the 2018-19 Revenue Outturn Report. The 
current projected outturn for 2019-20 is £1,708k resulting in a £3k overspend. 
This will require a corresponding increase in the amount released from 
reserves.

Page 16



8. Treasury Management 

Treasury Management Activity

8.1 A summary of treasury management activity during the three months to 30 
June, including details of investment and borrowing transactions and 
information about the Council’s investment and loans portfolios is contained in 
appendix N. During the quarter ending 30 June 2019

 Treasury management activities were carried out in accordance with 
the Council’s treasury management and investment strategies.

 No new external borrowing was undertaken.

Treasury and Prudential Indicators

8.2 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to determine and keep 
under review, limits on how much money it can afford to borrow by way of 
loans and other forms of credit. The processes the Council must follow in 
setting these limits (the ‘Authorised Limit for External Debt’) is set out in the 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities to which the Council 
is required to ‘have regard to’ under provisions contained in the 2003 Act. In 
addition to the Authorised Limit, CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury 
Management Codes and accompanying sector guidance, include a number of 
other key treasury management indicators designed to support and record 
local decision making in connection with capital and treasury activities.

8.3 The Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit (the statutory limit on borrowing 
under the Local Government Act 2003), Operational Boundary (the limit 
beyond which external debt is not expected to exceed) and other indicators 
and limits required by CIPFA’s Prudential and Treasury Management Codes 
were set out in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Investment Strategy for 2019-20. This was approved by the Full Council on 6 
March 2019.

8.4 During the quarter ended 30 June 2019 the Council has operated within the 
limits established by the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the 
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2019-20.

Page 17



9. Insurance 

9.1 A summary of claims lodged and closed between 1 April 2019 and 30 June 
2019 is set out in the table below.

Table 15 - Insurance claims 3 months to 30 June 2019
No. 

Claims
b/f

No. Closed
to date

No. Lodged
to date

No. Claims
Outstanding

Public Liability 2 1 5 6

Employers Liability 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0
Property Damage and Motor 4 3 0 1
Municipal Mutual (1974 to 1993) 0 0 0 0

6 4 5 7

9.2 The number of claims outstanding at the end of Quarter 1 totalled 8, 
compared to 7 outstanding at the end of the financial year. Four claims have 
been closed or settled during Quarter 1 of which Allerdale have incurred no 
cost.

9.3 The cost of outstanding claims is estimated at £32,120. Allerdale's liability is 
limited by our insurance excess, meaning the potential cost to Allerdale at this 
time is 2019-20 is £19,458.

9.4 At 1 April the Authority brought forward a provision for insurance liabilities of 
£97,364. Excluding the potential cost of existing claims this leaves a balance 
of £77,909 currently unallocated. This remaining balance is considered 
sufficient to meet liabilities arising from additional claims that may be received 
in relation to incidents incurred but not reported.

Page 18



10. Working Capital Management

Sundry Debtors and Write-offs

10.1 The outstanding sundry debt (including Trade Refuse) at 30 June 2019, was 
£1,432,140 which is detailed in the following table:

Table 16 - Outstanding Debtors at 30 June 2018
Total debt 

outstanding 
Not past 

due
30 Days 
past due

60 Days 
past due

>90 Days 
past due

£ £ £ £ £

At 30 June 2018 1,670,090 1,374,552 82,634 27,895 185,009
% debt 100% 82% 5% 2% 11%
At 31 Mar 2019 521,350 215,246 88,251 17,830 200,023
% debt 100% 41% 17% 4% 38%
At 30 June 2019 999,140 191,320 51,673 526,839 229,308
% debt 100% 19% 5% 53% 23%

10.2 At 30 June 2019:

 £526k or 53% of the outstanding debt is 60 days past its due date. 
£507k of the outstanding debt related to invoices raised to CCC for 
recycling credits.  This invoice was paid in July.

 £229k or 23% of the outstanding debt is over 90 days old. Of this, £86k 
is subject to a payment plan or is secured through charging orders. 
The remaining £143k is subject to ongoing recovery action. An 
allowance for credit losses of £82k is available to off-set the impact of 
non-recoverable debt balances. 

10.3 Between April and June 2019 12 sundry debtor/trade waste invoices were 
written off.

Table 17 - Write off of debtors
2017-18

Quarter 1
2018-19

Quarter 1
2019-20

Quarter 1
No 

invoices
Total 

£
No 

invoices
Total 

£
No 

invoices
Total 

£
Sundry Debtors 25 2,886.01 - - 12 2,044.59

Trade Waste 37 2,385.59 - - - -
Total 62 5,271.60 - - 12 2,044.59

Payment of Creditor Invoices
10.4 The Authority has a target to pay 98% of invoices from suppliers located 

within the Allerdale postal area within 14 days of receipt and 98% of non-
Allerdale supplier invoices within 30 days of receipt.

Page 19



10.5 During quarter 1 of 2019-20, 92% of Allerdale supplier invoices were paid 
within 14 days with 578 invoices being paid on time. Although behind target, 
performance has remained consistent when compared to the same period last 
year. 

10.6 During quarter 1 of 2019-20, 95% of national supplier invoices were paid 
within 30 days. This compares unfavourably with quarter 1 2018-19 when 
97% was achieved. Performance in April was marginally down on April 2018 
due to Easter falling in the middle of April compared to end of March in 2018. 
Q1 was also impacted by the need for the Environmental Quality and 
Elections resources to be re-directed to departmental issues.

Table 18 – Summary of supplier invoices paid quarter 1
Allerdale Non 

Allerdale

Service Area Qtr 1
%

Qtr 1
%

Leader of the Council 92% 100%
Economic Growth 100% 98%
Corporate Resources 100% 98%
Housing, Health and Wellbeing 90% 97%
Environmental Quality 74% 89%
Governance & People Resources 97% 94%
Tourism & Culture 83% 100%
Transformation 96% 90%
Total 92% 95%

10.7 A summary of the reasons for delays in payment is set below:

Table 19 - Reasons for delay in payment of supplier invoices (Q1 2019-20)
Reasons for delay Number of 

invoices

Invoices received without a valid purchase order 18
Price discrepancy between invoice and purchase order requiring  
authorisation prior to payment 5

Purchase order was not goods receipted prior to receipt of invoice 39
Manual authorisation required (purchase order not required) 26
Invoices sent directly to department or individual instead of the Invoice Section 11
Other non-recurring issues 1
Total number subject to delayed payment 100

10.8 Performance will continue to be monitored. Where issues are identified, they 
will be addressed and reported in future monitoring reports. 

Page 20



Council Tax and NNDR – collection statistics

10.9 During the three months to 30 June collection rates for Council tax and NNDR 
were broadly in line with expectations.

Table 20 – Council Tax and NNDR collection rates as at 30th June
Council Tax 
Collection

%

NNDR 
Collection

%

CTAX and NNDR as % of Full Year 
Collectable income

Q1 2019-20 29.67% 30.84% 30.01% - £262.m (out of £87.3m)
Q1 2018-19 29.75% 31.24% 30.26% - £25.6m (out of £84.7m)
Q1 2017-18 29.80% 30.90% 30.19% - £24.6m (out of £81.3m)

Catherine Nicholson
Head of Financial Services

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross Outturn

Planned Contr 

to Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

Leader of the Council 1,411,382 1,417,382 291,307 18,061 1,131,186 1,440,554 0 23,172 0 23,172

Economic Growth (1,396,916) (1,396,916) (1,052,653) 51,565 (399,375) (1,400,463) 0 (3,547) 0 (3,547)

Corporate Resources 5,983,339 5,937,339 790,927 243,115 4,719,945 5,753,987 0 (183,352) 0 (183,352)

Housing, Health & Well-being 928,026 915,656 241,041 113,060 582,833 936,934 0 21,278 0 21,278

Environmental Quality 2,054,653 2,102,898 368,757 5,321,077 (3,393,186) 2,296,648 25,000 218,750 0 218,750

Governance & People Resources 1,299,110 1,299,110 431,255 281,334 648,031 1,360,620 0 61,510 0 61,510

Tourism & Culture 412,255 416,380 54,242 130,245 220,977 405,464 0 (10,916) 0 (10,916)

Transformation 2,112,842 2,112,842 845,673 303,790 940,357 2,089,820 0 (23,022) 0 (23,022)
REVENUE Sub Total 12,804,691 12,804,691 1,970,549 6,462,247 4,450,768 12,883,564 25,000 103,873 0 103,873

Parish Precepts 2,197,940 2,197,940 1,098,970 0 1,098,970 2,197,940 0 0 0 0

TOTAL REVENUE 15,002,631 15,002,631 3,069,519 6,462,247 5,549,738 15,081,504 25,000 103,873 0 103,873

RESERVE  FUNDED PROJECTS

Leader of the Council 115,169 279,530 77,367 16,958 185,205 279,530 0 0 0 0

Economic Growth 0 11,050 9,962 1,088 0 11,050 0 0 0 0

Corporate Resources 13,200 270,039 1,200 4,196 267,913 273,309 0 3,270 0 3,270

Housing, Health & Well being 0 510,521 (2,000) 8,000 504,521 510,521 0 0 0 0

Environmental Quality 0 114,014 24,107 0 89,907 114,014 0 0 0 0

Governance & People Resources 172,490 259,566 (64,053) 4,225 319,394 259,566 0 0 0 0

Tourism & Culture 44,438 58,153 115 4,085 53,953 58,153 0 0 0 0

Transformation 50,154 201,792 44,500 0 157,292 201,792 0 0 0 0

TOTAL RESERVES 395,451 1,704,665 91,198 38,552 1,578,185 1,707,935 0 3,270 0 3,270

TOTAL 15,398,082 16,707,296 3,160,717 6,500,799 7,127,923 16,789,439 25,000 107,143 0 107,143

Summary of Projected Outturn by Portfoliio

Portfolio

Net

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

P
age 23



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1000 Communications and Marketing 38,500 38,500 564 12,832 33,106 46,502 0 8,002 0 8,002

1046 Corporate Improvement Team 9,020 9,020 7,150 73 5,680 12,903 0 3,883 0 3,883

1096 Gypsy & Travellers 8,000 4,000 0 0 4,000 4,000 0 0 0 0

1098 Strategic Partnership 32,980 32,980 9,352 3,000 20,628 32,980 0 0 0 0

1100 Grants to Voluntary Organisation 57,130 57,130 0 0 60,329 60,329 0 3,199 0 3,199

1101 Planning Policy 82,150 82,150 3,239 2,000 76,718 81,957 0 (193) 0 (193)

1103 Localities and Partnerships 7,995 7,995 1,060 38 6,880 7,978 0 (17) 0 (17)

1152 Leaders Portfolio 10,000 10,000 (360) 0 10,360 10,000 0 0 0 0

1179 Tackling Inequality 100,000 100,000 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0

1193 Cumbria CBL Partnership 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0

5040 PA to Heads of Services  Pay Groupv 31,950 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5660 Director of Resources & PA Pay Group 118,710 150,660 36,531 0 115,799 152,330 0 1,670 0 1,670

5680 Chief Executive & PA Pay Group 177,470 177,470 44,077 118 136,093 180,288 0 2,818 0 2,818

5860 Strategy, Policy & Performance Pay Group 604,720 604,720 154,713 0 450,001 604,714 0 (6) 0 (6)

5870 Head of Strategy, Policy & Performance 65,550 65,550 16,921 0 50,170 67,091 0 1,541 0 1,541

5880 Digital Allerdale Pay Group 0 0 818 0 0 818 0 818 0 818

5900 Head of Programmes & Projects  Pay Group 67,207 67,207 17,242 0 51,422 68,664 0 1,457 0 1,457

1,411,382 1,417,382 291,307 18,061 1,131,186 1,440,554 0 23,172 0 23,172

6007 Local Development Framework 0 33,831 7,368 7,992 18,471 33,831 0 0 0 0

6101 Planning Policy 0 15,362 5,996 8,966 400 15,362 0 0 0 0

6149 Health & Wellbeing Group 0 3,113 0 0 3,113 3,113 0 0 0 0

6150 Corporate Transformation 0 14,337 (145) 0 14,482 14,337 0 0 0 0

6701 Corporate Priorities 62,500 124,200 3,238 0 120,962 124,200 0 0 0 0

6741 Corporate Priorities-Credit Union 41,000 41,000 60,000 0 (19,000) 41,000 0 0 0 0

6744 Self Build Custom Build 11,669 39,584 910 0 38,674 39,584 0 0 0 0

6768 Corporate Improvement Team 0 8,103 0 0 8,103 8,103 0 0 0 0

115,169 279,530 77,367 16,958 185,205 279,530 0 0 0 0

1,526,551 1,696,912 368,674 35,019 1,316,391 1,720,084 0 23,172 0 23,172

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL PORTFOLIO

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

P
age 24



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1018 Tenanted Properties (216,090) (216,090) (55,154) 3,506 (155,483) (207,131) 0 8,959 0 8,959

1019 Industrial Units (234,400) (234,400) (77,134) 0 (180,370) (257,504) 0 (23,104) 0 (23,104)

1020 Other Land & Buildings (90,000) (90,000) (16,175) 60 (72,000) (88,115) 0 1,885 0 1,885

1025 Camping & Caravan Sites (787,991) (787,991) 12,267 0 (800,258) (787,991) 0 0 0 0

1027 Workington Town Centre (522,900) (522,900) (75,000) 0 (434,276) (509,276) 0 13,624 0 13,624

1028 Circuses & Fairs (5,700) (5,700) (5,700) 0 (900) (6,600) 0 (900) 0 (900)

1054 Building Control - Chargeable (343,940) (343,940) (325,715) 251 (62,010) (387,474) 0 (43,534) 0 (43,534)

1058 Planning and Development (605,250) (605,250) (378,092) 32,603 (210,100) (555,589) 0 49,661 0 49,661

1073 Markets (82,500) (82,500) (1,400) 0 (81,100) (82,500) 0 0 0 0

1105 The Hub Workington Town Centre 0 0 1,194 200 (794) 600 0 600 0 600

1116 Festivals & Events 71,080 71,080 26,800 200 44,080 71,080 0 0 0 0

1122 Building Control - Non-Chargeable 1,010 1,010 (1,365) 0 (1,975) (3,340) 0 (4,350) 0 (4,350)

1137 Delivering Jobs & Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1142 Corporate Property (26,000) (26,000) (9,976) 0 (15,000) (24,976) 0 1,024 0 1,024

1147 Town Centres 30,000 30,000 0 0 30,000 30,000 0 0 0 0

1157 Shop Front Improvements 50,000 50,000 (10,268) 0 60,268 50,000 0 0 0 0

1161 MSCP Maintenance 0 0 724 0 (724) 0 0 0 0 0

1184 Community Stadium 150,000 150,000 0 0 150,000 150,000 0 0 0 0

1187 Place Development 45,000 45,000 0 0 45,000 45,000 0 0 0 0

1191 Maryport Promenade 0 0 (49,750) 1,250 48,500 0 0 0 0 0

5260 Building Control Pay Group 313,450 313,450 67,724 10,500 215,880 294,104 0 (19,346) 0 (19,346)

5300 Planning and Development Pay Group 408,350 408,350 104,944 0 312,590 417,534 0 9,184 0 9,184

5440 Regeneration Pay Group 83,830 83,830 20,458 0 64,096 84,554 0 724 0 724

5600 Head of Development Services Pay Group 66,240 66,240 17,177 0 50,770 67,947 0 1,707 0 1,707

5740 Business Support Unit Pay Group 189,390 189,390 44,511 0 143,244 187,755 0 (1,635) 0 (1,635)

5800 Estates Pay Group 127,005 127,005 20,689 2,415 105,855 128,959 0 1,954 0 1,954

6535 Disposal of Allerdale Sites 10,000 10,000 (580) 580 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0

6548 Social Impact Investment Fund (27,500) (27,500) (362,832) 0 335,332 (27,500) 0 0 0 0

(1,396,916) (1,396,916) (1,052,653) 51,565 (399,375) (1,400,463) 0 (3,547) 0 (3,547)

6707 Festivals & Community Events 0 550 550 0 0 550 0 0 0 0

6758 Building Control Recruitment 0 10,500 9,412 1,088 0 10,500 0 0 0 0

0 11,050 9,962 1,088 0 11,050 0 0 0 0

(1,396,916) (1,385,866) (1,042,691) 52,653 (399,375) (1,389,413) 0 (3,547) 0 (3,547)

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

ECONOMIC GROWTH PORTFOLIO

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 25



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1004 Corporate Management 68,975 68,975 8,375 66,531 0 74,906 0 5,931 0 5,931

1015 Corporate Property Maintenance 516,098 520,098 229,152 16,758 276,000 521,910 0 1,812 0 1,812

1023 Footway Maintenance 126,940 126,940 15,762 46,361 76,500 138,623 0 11,683 0 11,683

1024 Coastal Protection & Inland Flooding 44,000 44,000 5,790 0 38,210 44,000 0 0 0 0

1032 Harrington Harbour 21,860 21,860 1,225 295 21,247 22,767 0 907 0 907

1034 Banking and Interest 1,153,788 1,153,788 236,132 20,581 774,972 1,031,685 0 (122,103) 0 (122,103)

1035 MRP & Finance Charges 1,230,904 1,230,904 0 0 1,122,423 1,122,423 0 (108,481) 0 (108,481)

1036 Insurances 235,065 235,065 196,205 1,999 36,861 235,065 0 0 0 0

1041 Contingencies 105,050 105,050 0 0 105,050 105,050 0 0 0 0

1069 Public Building Cleaning 89,030 89,030 19,484 2,806 62,810 85,100 0 (3,930) 0 (3,930)

1070 Public Conveniences 109,000 109,000 45,046 3,461 68,560 117,067 0 8,067 0 8,067

1118 Car Parks Inspection 38,000 38,000 7,113 7,158 23,735 38,006 0 6 0 6

1123 Pension Deficit 865,100 865,100 0 0 865,100 865,100 0 0 0 0

1170 Street Naming & Numbering (4,000) (4,000) (1,498) 0 (2,500) (3,998) 0 2 0 2

1173 Council Tax Discounts 3,500 3,500 6,652 0 0 6,652 0 3,152 0 3,152

1174 Strategic Priorities 500,000 450,000 55,222 72,365 322,413 450,000 0 0 0 0

1175 New Finance System 100,000 100,000 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0

1189 EU Exit Preparations 0 0 (34,968) 0 34,968 0 0 0 0 0

5100 Property Services Pay Group 202,700 202,700 53,952 0 157,700 211,652 0 8,952 0 8,952

5120 Finance and Accounting Pay Group 505,099 505,099 149,376 4,800 360,103 514,279 0 9,180 0 9,180

5520 Head of Financial Services Pay Group 72,230 72,230 19,336 0 54,364 73,700 0 1,470 0 1,470

6569 Groyne Refurbishment Maryport 0 0 (21,680) 0 21,680 0 0 0 0 0

6571 19 Brigham Road 0 0 (199,749) 0 199,749 0 0 0 0 0

5,983,339 5,937,339 790,927 243,115 4,719,945 5,753,987 0 (183,352) 0 (183,352)

1038 Parish Precepts 2,197,940 2,197,940 1,098,970 0 1,098,970 2,197,940 0 0 0

6021 Risk Management 0 0 0 3,270 0 3,270 0 3,270 0 3,270

6719 Direct Debits & System Developments 0 27,576 0 0 27,576 27,576 0 0 0 0

6720 Footway Lighting Scheme 13,200 13,200 1,200 926 11,074 13,200 0 0 0 0

6759 Strategic Priorities 0 229,263 0 0 229,263 229,263 0 0 0 0

13,200 270,039 1,200 4,196 267,913 273,309 0 3,270 0 3,270

8,194,479 8,405,318 1,891,097 247,311 6,086,828 8,225,236 0 (180,082) 0 (180,082)

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

 CORPORATE RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 26



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1001 Training 73,010 73,010 15,765 16,313 40,932 73,010 0 0 0 0

1002 Corporate Recruitment 5,000 5,000 249 170 4,581 5,000 0 0 0 0

1003 Pensions 155,500 155,500 1,018 158,027 0 159,045 0 3,545 0 3,545

1007 Mayoral Services 12,630 12,630 5,993 131 6,766 12,890 0 260 0 260

1008 Mayor's Fund 3,000 3,000 (345) 0 2,336 1,991 0 (1,009) 0 (1,009)

1009 Members Services 268,280 268,280 78,250 3,776 186,286 268,312 0 32 0 32

1010 Leaders Services 29,410 29,410 6,793 0 23,376 30,169 0 759 0 759

1011 Electoral Registration 50,000 50,000 229 0 49,750 49,979 0 (21) 0 (21)

1012 Elections 55,000 55,000 17,178 527 38,279 55,984 0 984 0 984

1062 Licensing Service (184,660) (184,660) (26,390) 1,588 (155,496) (180,298) 0 4,362 0 4,362

1063 Land Charges Service (94,140) (94,140) (23,294) 41,010 (111,643) (93,927) 0 213 0 213

1064 Community Safety 10,000 10,000 1,404 0 8,700 10,104 0 104 0 104

1146 Referral Centre 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0

5000 Human Resources Pay Group 169,900 169,900 33,884 12,231 120,014 166,129 0 (3,771) 0 (3,771)

5060 Democratic Services Pay Group 138,300 138,300 34,384 0 112,866 147,250 0 8,950 0 8,950

5080 Internal Audit Pay Group 106,230 106,230 21,186 7,383 78,390 106,959 0 729 0 729

5320 Licensing Pay Group 81,350 81,350 20,711 0 62,199 82,910 0 1,560 0 1,560

5480 Legal Services Pay Group 167,700 167,700 43,032 21,427 103,141 167,600 0 (100) 0 (100)

5540 Head of Governance Pay Group 72,230 72,230 18,622 0 55,078 73,700 0 1,470 0 1,470

5790 Governance Support Assistants Pay Group 73,330 73,330 18,681 0 56,113 74,794 0 1,464 0 1,464

5810 Elections - Pay Group 91,040 91,040 23,526 0 70,000 93,526 0 2,486 0 2,486

6515 Apprentices & Graduates 11,000 11,000 15,194 0 0 15,194 0 4,194 0 4,194

6570 Elections 0 0 174,827 18,592 (193,275) 144 0 144 0 144

6573 European Election 19 0 0 (67,797) 159 67,638 0 0 0 0 0

6163 Legal Costs - Stadium 0 0 17,737 0 17,000 34,737 0 34,737 0 34,737

6706 Community Safety (Funded) 0 0 418 0 0 418 0 418 0 418
1,299,110 1,299,110 431,255 281,334 648,031 1,360,620 0 61,510 0 61,510

6017 Legal Counsel 67,490 67,490 0 0 67,490 67,490 0 0 0 0

6053 Provision for Elections 105,000 100,175 0 0 100,175 100,175 0 0 0 0

6082 IER work -Elections 0 9,000 0 0 9,000 9,000 0 0 0 0

6135 Allerdale Options 0 13,953 231 0 13,722 13,953 0 0 0 0

6706 Community Safety 0 0 (73,381) 0 73,381 0 0 0 0 0

6730 Licensing Service Re-design 0 600 0 0 600 600 0 0 0 0

6749 Transfer of Land Charges Data 0 29,488 9,097 4,225 16,166 29,488 0 0 0 0

6750 Legal advice re GDPR 0 20,000 0 0 20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0

6764 Licensing Agency Staff 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0

6765 ICT Audit Work 0 8,860 0 0 8,860 8,860 0 0 0 0
172,490 259,566 (64,053) 4,225 319,394 259,566 0 0 0 0

1,471,600 1,558,676 367,202 285,559 967,425 1,620,186 0 61,510 0 61,510

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E

GOVERNANCE & PEOPLE RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 27



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1065 Emergency Planning 19,700 19,700 1,032 0 500 1,532 0 (18,168) 0 (18,168)

1072 Pest Control (4,480) (4,480) (125) 0 13,815 13,690 0 18,170 0 18,170

1078 Health and Safety 1,350 1,350 73 0 1,277 1,350 0 0 0 0

1080 Food and Occupational Health (3,990) (3,990) 38,013 2,265 (44,318) (4,040) 0 (50) 0 (50)

1081 Environmental Protection (16,150) (16,150) (27,156) 29,331 (7,512) (5,337) 0 10,813 0 10,813

1089 Housing Strat Function (1,040) (1,040) (802) 0 517 (285) 0 755 0 755

1092 Homelessness 32,280 (12,180) (45,115) 21,836 4,155 (19,124) 0 (6,944) 0 (6,944)

1093 Assistance - Housing Services (81,500) (81,500) 7,386 28,324 (104,388) (68,678) 0 12,822 0 12,822

1185 Housing 5,000 5,000 72 0 4,928 5,000 0 0 0 0

1188 Rogue Landlord Enforcement 0 0 8,236 6,450 (14,686) 0 0 0 0 0

5560 Head of Housing & Health 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5760 Housing & Environmental Health Pay group 39,160 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5910 Programme Director for Maryport Regeneration 114,440 114,680 28,452 0 87,578 116,030 0 1,350 0 1,350

5920 Food Safety & Occupational Health Pay Group 246,270 257,988 61,184 2,465 184,906 248,555 0 (9,433) 0 (9,433)

5930 Environmental Protection Pay Group 229,126 240,028 72,055 22,389 153,136 247,580 0 7,552 0 7,552

5940 Housing Improvement Pay Group 142,870 149,668 38,813 0 113,037 151,850 0 2,182 0 2,182

5950 Emergency Planning, H&S & Homelessness 204,750 246,582 58,923 0 189,888 248,811 0 2,229 0 2,229

6130 Housing Needs Survey 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6733 Npower Energy Efficiency Programme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

928,026 915,656 241,041 113,060 582,833 936,934 0 21,278 0 21,278

6128 Homelessness 0 0 (8,000) 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

6142 Community Housing Fund 0 471,553 0 0 471,553 471,553 0 0 0 0

6756 Grant Homeless Prevention 0 16,250 6,000 0 10,250 16,250 0 0 0 0

6757 Rogue Landlord Fund 0 22,718 0 0 22,718 22,718 0 0 0 0

0 510,521 (2,000) 8,000 504,521 510,521 0 0 0 0

928,026 1,426,177 239,041 121,060 1,087,354 1,447,455 0 21,278 0 21,278

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 F

PORTFOLIO : HOUSING, HEALTH & WELLBEING

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 28



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1051 Confidential Waste 3,600 3,600 972 0 2,628 3,600 0 0 0 0

1053 Bereavement Services (151,460) (151,460) (64,623) 6,636 (93,473) (151,460) 0 0 0 0

1067 Parks and Grounds Maintenance 396,940 396,940 242,787 1,216,337 (1,062,184) 396,940 0 0 0 0

1068 Street Cleansing 972,480 972,480 1,823 7,837 967,764 977,424 0 4,944 0 4,944

1071 Animal Welfare 41,695 41,695 3,847 20,000 25,315 49,162 0 7,467 0 7,467

1074 Parks Development 0 0 0 9,450 (9,450) 0 0 0 0 0

1075 Domestic Waste 1,372,505 1,372,505 22,348 1,389,807 (34,408) 1,377,747 0 5,242 0 5,242

1076 Trade Waste (797,115) (797,115) (123,491) 391,948 (1,052,962) (784,505) 0 12,610 0 12,610

1077 Recycling 486,553 486,553 161,826 1,196,542 (761,029) 597,339 0 110,786 0 110,786

1079 Environmental Initiatives 61,418 61,418 2,587 9,936 48,895 61,418 0 0 0 0

1083 Off-street - Owned Car Parks (2,035,126) (2,035,126) (262,636) 44,410 (1,820,459) (2,038,685) 0 (3,559) 0 (3,559)

1085 Multi-storey Car Park 31,165 31,165 104,263 150,321 (230,737) 23,847 0 (7,318) 0 (7,318)

1086 Off-street - Managed Car Parks (60,000) (60,000) 4,169 1 (64,169) (59,999) 0 1 0 1

1112 Sports & Leisure Centres 569,110 569,110 194,324 470,475 (102,440) 562,359 0 (6,751) 0 (6,751)

1114 Sports Development 41,700 41,700 (5,612) 4,986 41,691 41,065 0 (635) 0 (635)

1115 Maryport Wave 184,728 184,728 50,695 142,189 (4,857) 188,027 0 3,299 0 3,299

1136 Supporting Leisure Activity 30,000 30,000 10,000 0 20,000 30,000 0 0 0 0

1153 Workington Nature Partnership 13,950 13,950 15,439 143 (1,632) 13,950 0 0 0 0

1166 Multi Store Car Park Utility & Maintenance 117,910 117,910 (4,775) 19,148 74,000 88,373 25,000 (4,537) 0 (4,537)

1168 Allerdale Fleet 66,000 68,370 13,432 3,765 51,488 68,685 0 315 0 315

1169 Maryport Open Space Improvements (S106) 0 0 (84,939) 84,937 0 (2) 0 (2) 0 (2)

1171 Asset Transfer 50,000 50,000 8,752 31,695 9,553 50,000 0 0 0 0

1172 Major Contract Procurement 0 0 (94,677) 75,219 21,555 2,097 0 2,097 0 2,097

1177 Fairy Path Reinstate 20,000 20,000 0 0 20,000 20,000 0 0 0 0

1182 Waste Contract (2019)-Operational Costs 33,000 83,000 28,662 45,295 139,755 213,712 0 130,712 0 130,712

1190 Waste Contract - Core Fund 0 0 (8,346) 0 0 (8,346) 0 (8,346) 0 (8,346)

5580 Head of Community Services Pay Group 65,550 65,550 16,935 0 50,170 67,105 0 1,555 0 1,555

5820 Community Services Pay Group 540,050 535,925 134,995 0 371,800 506,795 0 (29,130) 0 (29,130)
2,054,653 2,102,898 368,757 5,321,077 (3,393,186) 2,296,648 25,000 218,750 0 218,750

6096 Environmental Initiatives 0 10,941 0 0 10,941 10,941 0 0 0 0

6152 Bereavement Services 0 6,636 0 0 6,636 6,636 0 0 0 0

6708 Leisure Activities 0 4,850 0 0 4,850 4,850 0 0 0 0

6748 Sports Development 0 327 327 0 0 327 0 0 0 0

6761 Clean Streets Campaign 0 13,000 0 0 13,000 13,000 0 0 0 0

6762 Park Pocket Plus Project 0 38,760 23,780 0 14,980 38,760 0 0 0 0

6763 Environmental Assets Improvements 0 39,500 0 0 39,500 39,500 0 0 0 0
0 114,014 24,107 0 89,907 114,014 0 0 0 0

2,054,653 2,216,912 392,864 5,321,077 (3,303,279) 2,410,662 25,000 218,750 0 218,750

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 G

PORTFOLIO : ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 29



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1056 Silloth TIC 10,410 10,410 4,128 50 6,230 10,408 0 (2) 0 (2)

1106 Contribution to AONB 31,200 31,200 0 0 31,200 31,200 0 0 0 0

1110 Museums 48,835 48,835 24,000 24,000 835 48,835 0 0 0 0

1111 Arts Development 10,150 10,150 35 0 10,000 10,035 0 (115) 0 (115)

1144 Carnegie Trust 90,000 90,000 15,000 75,000 0 90,000 0 0 0 0

1158 Tourism Incentive 155,500 167,500 9,867 18,127 127,506 155,500 0 (12,000) 0 (12,000)

5840 Tourism Pay Group 50,580 54,705 13,012 0 42,289 55,301 0 596 0 596

6501 Solway  AONB Core 3,580 3,580 89,922 9,211 (95,553) 3,580 0 0 0 0

6517 Solway Wetlands Project 0 0 (110,503) 0 110,503 0 0 0 0 0

6531 Solway AONB Other Projects 0 0 8,781 1,862 (10,643) 0 0 0 0 0

6568 Remembering the Solway 12,000 0 0 1,995 (1,995) 0 0 0 0 0

6119 Museums 0 0 0 0 605 605 0 605 0 605

412,255 416,380 54,242 130,245 220,977 405,464 0 (10,916) 0 (10,916)

6119 Museums 0 3,895 0 0 3,895 3,895 0 0 0 0

6155 Solway AONB 44,438 44,438 115 4,085 40,238 44,438 0 0 0 0

6755 Remembering the Solway Project 0 9,820 0 0 9,820 9,820 0 0 0 0

44,438 58,153 115 4,085 53,953 58,153 0 0 0 0

456,693 474,533 54,357 134,330 274,930 463,617 0 (10,916) 0 (10,916)

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 H

PORTFOLIO : TOURISM & CULTURE

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 30



Approved 

budget

Current

Budget
Actuals Commitments Forecast

Projected 

Gross 

Outturn

Planned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Gross 

Variance

Unplanned 

Contr to 

Reserves

Variance

REVENUE

1047 IT Services 357,837 357,837 137,313 24,852 195,672 357,837 0 0 0 0

1048 Shared Revenues & Benefits IT Costs 82,584 82,584 0 0 82,584 82,584 0 0 0 0

1050 Multi-functional Printers 10,530 10,530 2,494 17,812 (5,000) 15,306 0 4,776 0 4,776

1059 Revenue (349,240) (349,240) 5,407 266 (350,932) (345,259) 0 3,981 0 3,981

1060 Benefits (535,721) (535,721) 88,887 0 (625,445) (536,558) 0 (837) 0 (837)

1061 Shared Revs & Bens 113,500 113,500 74,637 0 38,863 113,500 0 0 0 0

1140 Shared ICT Costs 74,700 74,700 15,274 3,360 56,066 74,700 0 0 0 0

1165 Corporate Postage & Stationery 134,030 134,030 38,520 15,141 80,369 134,030 0 0 0 0

1178 New Cash Receipting System 50,000 50,000 9,000 51,685 0 60,685 0 10,685 0 10,685

5160 Shared IT Services Pay Group 322,400 322,400 69,579 0 239,870 309,449 0 (12,951) 0 (12,951)

5280 Customer Services Pay Group 472,689 472,689 124,591 17,941 347,765 490,297 0 17,608 0 17,608

5500 Head of Customer, Transformation, Commissioning 65,550 65,550 16,834 0 50,170 67,004 0 1,454 0 1,454

5700 Customer & Transformation Pay Group 205,550 205,550 26,056 0 148,994 175,050 0 (30,500) 0 (30,500)

5730 Commissioning Support Pay Group 109,390 109,390 27,253 2,283 81,984 111,520 0 2,130 0 2,130

5850 Revs, Bens & Recovery Pay Group 870,690 870,690 219,126 0 666,767 885,893 0 15,203 0 15,203

6557 Ferris Maintenance Fund 0 0 (19,282) 0 0 (19,282) 0 (19,282) 0 (19,282)

6561 Universal Credit 0 0 (17,081) 0 0 (17,081) 0 (17,081) 0 (17,081)

6564 Project X 128,353 128,353 33,065 170,450 (73,870) 129,645 0 1,292 0 1,292

6572 Telco in a Box (TIAB) 0 0 (6,000) 0 6,000 0 0 0 0 0

6767 Digital Take Up Consultancy Work 0 0 0 0 500 500 0 500 0 500

2,112,842 2,112,842 845,673 303,790 940,357 2,089,820 0 (23,022) 0 (23,022)

6077 Shared Revs & Bens 0 71,422 0 0 71,422 71,422 0 0 0 0

6147 Major Incident Response 45,154 44,500 44,500 0 0 44,500 0 0 0 0

6154 IT Services-Corporate Printers 5,000 5,000 0 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0

6753 ARCUS System 0 73,870 0 0 73,870 73,870 0 0 0 0

6767 Digital Take Up Consultancy Work 0 7,000 0 0 7,000 7,000 0 0 0 0

50,154 201,792 44,500 0 157,292 201,792 0 0 0 0

2,162,996 2,314,634 890,173 303,790 1,097,649 2,291,612 0 (23,022) 0 (23,022)

Total Revenue

RESERVES

Total Reserves

TOTAL

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

PORTFOLIO : TRANSFORMATION

Cost 

Centre
Description

Net

P
age 31



Projected

Approved Current Projected Outturn Projected

Budget Budget Outturn  Variance  Variance

£ £ £ £ £ £

Spend Against Budget 

Economic Growth 6,853,400 8,073,575 905,696 (7,167,879) 2,167,879 (5,000,000)

Corporate Resources 130,000 373,554 373,800 246 0 246

Housing, Health & Well-being 1,605,000 2,124,951 2,127,726 2,775 0 2,775

Environmental Quality 210,000 629,620 629,620 (0) 0 (0)

Tourism & Culture 1,089,900 1,130,907 1,130,907 0 0 0

Transformation 40,000 40,000 40,000 0 0 0

TOTAL - Capital Budget Monitoring 'Spend' 9,928,300 12,372,607 5,207,750 (7,164,857) 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

Financing

External Funding Sources

DFG Housing Grant 1,125,000 1,226,632 1,226,632 0 0 0

SCP Housing Grant 0 91,764 94,786 3,022 0 3,022

ERDF grant - Reedlands Road Development 831,019 1,500,000 229,275 (1,270,725) 1,270,725 0

Coastal Communities Fund grant - Solway Coast Pathway 839,900 880,907 880,907 0 0 0

Other grants and contributions - Harrington Reservoir 250,000 250,000 250,000 0 0 0

Total - External Funding Sources 3,045,919 3,949,303 2,681,600 (1,267,703) 1,270,725 3,022

ABC Resources

Capital Receipts 380,000 455,290 455,290 0 0 0

Revenue Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue 0 0 0 0 0

General Fund Balances 137,665 137,665 0 0 0

Prudential Borrowing 6,502,386 7,830,355 1,933,201 (5,897,154) 897,154 (5,000,000)

Total - ABC Resources 6,882,386 8,423,310 2,526,156 (5,897,154) 897,154 (5,000,000)

TOTAL - Capital Budget Monitoring 'Financing' 9,928,305 12,372,613 5,207,756 (7,164,857) 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

Total Net Projected Outturn:

Expenditure 9,928,300 12,372,607 5,207,750 (7,164,857) 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

Financing 9,928,305 12,372,613 5,207,756 (7,164,857) 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

(5) (6) (6) (0) 0 (0)

Capital Budget Monitoring Overview

Budget 

Carry

Forward

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 J

P
age 32



Actual Projected

Approved Carry Current Year Department Projected Outturn Forecast Projected

Cost Budget Forwards Budget to Date  Forecast Outturn  Variance Budget C/F  Variance

 Centre Description £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

8005 Strategic Acquisitions 393,373 82,956 476,326 77,000 0 399,326 476,326 0 0 0

8006 Lillyhall - Land Purchase 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8013 Reedlands Road Development 1,385,032 1,112,219 2,497,249 56,951 272,419 0 329,370 (2,167,879) 2,167,879 (0)

8022 Community Stadium 5,000,000 0 5,000,000 0 0 0 0 (5,000,000) 0 (5,000,000)

8101 Kirkgate Centre Contribution 75,000 25,000 100,000 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0

TOTAL - Economic Growth 6,853,405 1,220,175 8,073,575 133,951 272,419 499,326 905,696 (7,167,879) 2,167,879 (5,000,000)

8007 Demolition Moorclose Sport Centre 0 22,037 22,037 0 0 22,037 22,037 0 0 0

8018 Riverbank Wks & Millfield 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 30,000 30,000 0 0 0

8505 Workington Hall Repair Scheme 0 37,540 37,540 0 0 37,540 37,540 0 0 0

8509 Public Toilets Review Works 0 108,687 108,687 13,621 9,776 85,494 108,891 204 0 204

8601 Helena Thompson Museum Development 100,000 75,290 175,290 (2,742) 11,580 166,494 175,332 42 0 42

TOTAL -  Corporate Resources 130,000 243,554 373,554 10,879 21,356 341,565 373,800 246 0 246

8001 The Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant 1,125,000 99,624 1,224,624 223,837 0 1,000,787 1,224,624 0 0 0

8003 Healthy Homes (Empty Homes) 100,000 141,555 241,555 1,200 0 240,355 241,555 (0) 0 (0)

8011 Discretionary Grants 0 2,008 2,008 4,670 0 (2,662) 2,008 (0) 0 (0)

8014 Flood resilience 100,000 185,000 285,000 0 0 285,000 285,000 0 0 0

8023 Conversion Otley Rd 130,000 0 130,000 0 0 130,000 130,000 0 0 0

8024 Maryport Container Village 150,000 0 150,000 0 0 150,000 150,000 0 0 0

8107 Housing Improvement Projects 0 91,764 91,764 2,776 0 91,764 94,540 2,776 0 2,776

8301 Cluster of Empty Hom 0 0 0 5,795 0 (5,795) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL - Housing & Housing, Health & Well-being 1,605,000 519,951 2,124,951 238,278 0 1,889,449 2,127,726 2,775 0 2,775

8015 Vehicle and wheeled bin acquisition costs 0 135,809 135,809 14,678 22,827 98,304 135,809 (0) 0 (0)

8019 Biodiversity & Green 25,000 0 25,000 4,000 0 21,000 25,000 0 0 0

8020 Keswick Car Park Enhancements 0 35,000 35,000 (25,027) 23,527 36,500 35,000 0 0 0

8021 Keswick Car Park Enhancements 35,000 (35,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8512 Car Park - signage and equipment 0 49,900 49,900 10,625 3,040 36,235 49,900 0 0 0

8515 Highfield Community Centre 0 101,000 101,000 0 0 101,000 101,000 0 0 0

8616 Harrington reservoir 0 0 0 0 17,441 (17,441) 0 0 0 0

8909 Brow-Top Enhancement Schemes 150,000 132,911 282,911 36,446 26,280 220,185 282,911 (0) 0 (0)

TOTAL - Locality 210,000 419,620 629,620 40,722 93,115 495,783 629,620 (0) 0 (0)

8109 Solway Coast Pathway 1,089,900 41,007 1,130,907 15,652 4,903 1,110,352 1,130,907 0 0 0

TOTAL -Tourism & Culture 1,089,900 41,007 1,130,907 15,652 4,903 1,110,352 1,130,907 0 0 0

8701 IT Equipment 40,000 0 40,000 2,804 0 37,196 40,000 0 0 0

TOTAL - Transformation 40,000 0 40,000 2,804 0 37,196 40,000 0 0 0

9,928,305 2,444,308 12,372,613 442,286 391,793 4,373,671 5,207,750 (7,164,857) 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

Tourism & Culture

Transformation

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 K

Capital Budget Monitoring - Spend Against Budget

Commitments

 Economic Growth

 Corporate Resources

Housing, Health & Well-being

Environmental Quality

P
age 33



Projected use of resources to finance the capital programme.

Approved Virements / Current Projected Forecast Projected

Budget Adjustments Budget Outturn Budget C/F  Variance

Description £ £ £ £ £ £

External Funding Sources

DFG Housing Grant 1,125,000 101,632 1,226,632 1,226,632 0 0

SCP Housing Grant 0 91,764 91,764 94,786 0 3,022

ERDF grant - Reedlands Road Development 831,019 668,981 1,500,000 229,275 1,270,725 0

LEP Growth Deal funding - Lillyhall Development 0 0 0 0 0

Coastal Communities Fund grant - Solway Coast Pathway 839,900 41,007 880,907 880,907 0 0

Other grants and contributions - Harrington Reservoir 250,000 250,000 250,000 0 0

TOTAL - External Funding 3,045,919 903,384 3,949,303 2,681,600 1,270,725 3,022

ABC Resources

Capital Receipts 380,000 75,290 455,290 455,290 0 0

Revenue Earmarked Reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue (from parks development budget - harrington nature reserve) 0 0 0 0 0

General Fund Balances 0 137,665 137,665 137,665 0 0

Prudential Borrowing 6,502,386 1,327,969 7,830,355 1,933,201 897,154 (5,000,000)

TOTAL - ABC Resources 6,882,386 1,540,924 8,423,310 2,526,156 897,154 (5,000,000)

TOTAL - 'FINANCING' 9,928,305 2,444,308 12,372,613 5,207,756 2,167,879 (4,996,978)

Capital Budget Monitoring - Financing

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 L

P
age 34



Capital receipts and Capital grants available to fund the capital programme

Housing Other

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (1,038,035) (227,203) (191,212)

Capital receipts receivable 2019-20 year to date (114,623) - -

Capital grants receivable in 2019-20 - (1,214,265) (1,750,000)

Release of grants received in advance b/f at 1.4.19 - 0 (880,907)

Available for allocation (1,152,658) (1,441,468) (2,822,119)

Allocation:

Financing capital budget 2019-20 455,290 1,318,396 2,630,907

Housing grants applied to fund DFG expenditure 14,623 - -

Allocated to finance capital budget after 2019-20 0 0 0

Ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget* 45,000 0 191,212

Not currently allocated or ringfenced (637,745) (123,072) 0

 *The items identified as 'ring-fenced resources not yet brought into budget’ are:

Potential Capital Receipts

Asset Disposal Type

Disposal of public convenience - Ladore Potential Sale

Disposal of public convenience - Grange Potential Sale

Balances:

APPENDIX M

Note: The above table excludes any capital receipts arising from the repayment of Allerdale Investment 

Partnership LLP secured loan notes. 

Proposed transfer to National 

Park Authority (for nominal 

consideration) for continued use 

as a public convenience

Estimated sale price on open 

market £75,000.

 - £45,000 relating to the proceeds from the sale of Workington Hall Lodge and ring-fenced for 

improvements to the Hall Park.

 - £191,212 relates to a number of specific capital grants. These can only be applied to the purposes for 

which they were received. 

There are a number of asset disposals currently on-going, which if seen to completion will result in addition 

capital receipts, these will only be shown in the above table when the disposal is complete:

Status

Disposal under discussion which 

will provide a Public Convenience 

facility, which will restricted the 

sale price to £10,000.

Estimated sale price on open 

market would be £75,000.

Capital Resources Overview

Current Capital Resources
Capital 

Receipts

Grants & Contributions

Page 35



Summary of Treasury Management Activity - Quarter 1 2019-20

 Investment Activity Quarter 1 2019-20  Investment Activity 2018-19  

Made Repaid Made Repaid

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Call Accounts AA 428 4,596 (2,984) 2,040 Call Accounts  AA- 822 16,743 (17,137) 428

Call Accounts A/A- 597 2,532 (2,413) 716 Call Accounts  A / A- 796 28,273 (28,472) 597

Notice Accounts A 0 0 0 0 Notice Accounts A 0 1,200 (1,200) 0

Money Market Funds AAA 5,288 19,435 (18,730) 5,993
Money Market 

Funds
AAA 5,515 52,586 (52,813) 5,288

Equity Shares - 11 0 0 11 Equity Shares Not rated 11 0 0 11

Total 6,324 26,563 (24,127) 8,760 7,144 98,802 (99,622) 6,324

Comment:

Borrowing Activity Quarter 1 2019-20 Borrowing Activity 2018-19 

New 

Borrowing

Borrowing 

Repaid
01-Apr-18

New 

Borrowing

Borrowing 

Repaid
31-Mar-19

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Long-term Long-term

PWLB – fixed rates 15,067 0 (33) 15,034
PWLB – fixed 

rates
15,380 0 (313) 15,067

Short-term Short-term

Local Bonds 31 0 0 31 Local Bonds 31 0 0 31

Trust Funds 54 0 0 54 Trust Funds 54 0 0 54

15,152 0 (33) 15,119 15,465 0 (313) 15,152

Comment:

No new borrowing or rescheduling of existing loans took place during Q1 of 2019-20. At 30 June 2019 the total premature redemption premium payable was £14.6m.

(31 March 2019: £14.3m)

Non specified investments Non Specified Investments

01-Apr-19 30-Jun-19

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 N

 (i)

At 30 June 2019  investment balances totalled £8.76m. This compares with a balance of £6.32m at 31 March 2019 and £10.33m  at June 2018.  The average investment 

balance during the quarter was £9.63m. In accordance with the Council's approved Investment Strategy, all investments made during the quarter and  year to date were 

restricted to approved investment instruments with counterparties holding minimum credit ratings of A-. The term of all investments made did not exceed the maximum 

permitted durations determined by reference to the creditworthiness of the counterparty. 

Credit 

Rating

01-Apr-18
Investments

31-Mar-19

Specified investments Specified Investments 

Credit 

Rating

01-Apr-19
Investments 

30-Jun-19

P
age 36



Composition of PWLB loans portfolio Maturity profile of borrowing (inc non PWLB)

 30 June 

2019
 31 Mar 2019

 31 Dec 

2018

 30 Sept 

2018

 30 June 

2018

 30 June 

2019
 31 Mar 2019

 31 Dec 

2018

 30 Sept 

2018
 30 June 2018

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Maturity loans 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 Less than 1 year 407 405 404 401 401

Annuity loans 1,594 1,627 1,633 1,664 1,670 Between 1 & 2yrs 330 327 326 323 323

EIP Loans 5,440 5,440 5,560 5,560 5,680 Between 2 & 5yrs 1,043 1,031 1,029 1,018 1,016

Total 15,034 15,067 15,193 15,224 15,350
Between 5 & 

10yrs
1,946 1,934 1,928 1,906 1,900

Redemption Value 29,827 29,605 28,567 28,124 29,307
Between 10 & 

20yrs
2,753 2,815 2,831 2,901 2,915

Between 20 & 

30yrs
640 640 760 760 880

Average interest  % 5.45% 5.45% 5.43% 5.44% 5.42%
Between 30 & 

40yrs
8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Average maturity (Yrs) 29 29 29 29 30
Between 40 & 

50yrs
0 0 0 0

Weighted average life (Yrs) 24 25 25 25 25

15,119 15,152 15,278 15,309 15,435

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 N

 (ii)

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 38



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 4 September 2019
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 6 September 2019

Council Plan  
Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20

The Reason for the Decision The Council’s performance at the end of 
Quarter 1 2019/20 as measured by key 
projects/activities and KPIs 

Summary of options considered N/A

Recommendations That Members note the information contained 
within the report and take action to improve 
performance where necessary. 

Financial /  Resource Implications None arising directly from the report

Legal / Governance Implications None arising directly from the report

Community Safety Implications None arising directly from the report

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None arising directly from the report

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Equality impacts are considered in the 
development of individual projects and 
programmes

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

This is a performance report on delivery against 
the Council’s priorities as set out in the Council 
Plan 2019-23

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Cllr Marion Fitzgerald

Lead Officer Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 
Performance and Information)
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk
01900 702719

Page 39

Agenda Item 7

mailto:alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk


Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal N Partnership Y

Social Inclusion Y Asset Management Y

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers ………………………… …………………………………………………

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Quarter 1 Corporate Performance Report for 2019/20 covers the period from 1 
April to 30 June 2019.  

1.2 The report is based on key projects/activities and key performance indicators set 
out in the Corporate Business Plan.  

1.3 The Corporate Business Plan is built around our Council Plan.  For each Council 
Plan priority theme the Business Plan details key service improvement 
projects/actions as well as activity to deliver key strategies and plans over the next 
year, and the key performance indicators that we will use to track our performance.  
In addition the Business Plan sets out how our significant day to day ‘service 
activity contributes to achieving our objectives.  

1.4 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Plan.

2.0 Council Performance

2.1 The full quarterly performance report is attached as Appendix 1 and contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 1 performance 

 Appendices containing more detail on performance against our priorities, key 
performance indicators and corporate risks

2.2 In line with the Council’s Integrated Assurance and Risk Strategy, Heads of Service 
review the risk and issues log on a monthly basis or as required, and report to SMT on 
existing key risks (those which score 9 and above), risks that have changed 
significantly and any new and emerging risks/issues, with key risks being reported to 

Page 40



the Executive on a quarterly basis. The current Key Risks Report can be found in 
Appendix C to the Quarterly Performance Report.

3.0 Customer Satisfaction and Service

3.1 Projects within the priority area of ‘Creating a sustainable business’ in the Council 
Plan relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.  

4.0 Services Delivered as Locally as Possible

4.1 This is an area covered within the Council Plan under the ‘Creating a sustainable 
business’ priority.

5.0 Finance/Resource Implications

5.1 There are no additional resource requirements arising from this report.

6.0 Legal Implications and Risks

6.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this report.  Any risks will be 
managed through the Risk Management Strategy and corporate methodology.

7.0 Recommendations

7.1 That Members note the information contained within the report and take action to 
improve performance where necessary.

Alex FitzGerald
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information)

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



1

Quarterly corporate performance report
2019/20 Quarter 1 performance

This performance report summarises our performance during the first quarter of 2019/20 
covering the period from 1 April to 30 June 2019. The report contains:

 A short overview of our Quarter 1 performance 

 Appendices containing detail on performance against our priorities, key performance 
indicators (KPIs) and corporate risks

Performance overview

This report contains Quarter 1 progress updates on 58 projects/activities and 48 key 
performance indicators set out in the Business Plan. The report also updates members on key 
corporate risk and activity to mitigate those.

Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Red Amber Green Blue Not 
targeted

Projects/activities 59 1 18 39 1 -

KPIs 46 5 10 29 - 2

The attached appendices contain more details about performance on our activities/projects and 
key performance indicators.

Page 43



2

Projects/activities (Appendix A)
 66% of projects/activities are completed or on track

What went well in quarter 1:
 Successful completion of the UCLAN internship
 Local Plan (Part 2) has moved significantly forward - hearings took place over two weeks in 

May and we now waiting for the Inspector to report what modifications are required to the 
Plan to make it "sound". The proposed modifications will be subject to a six week consultation 
prior to the Inspector issuing his final report.

 The Maryport Regeneration Plan is moving forward positively – an excellent community 
event was held on 8 April with 70+ volunteers helping with beach and grassed areas 
cleaning, a dog dirt enforcement campaign, improved access onto the beach and two full 
sets of stone steps deep cleaned. A deep clean of the town centre and the North Quay 
was also undertaken including power washing and replacing missing decorative tiles. 
We have been successful in getting Maryport as a starting/finishing point of the Reivers 
Route (one of the key cycling routes from the North East to the North West), have been 
awarded £50k from the Coastal Heritage Fund to improve the Gazebo, and its immediate 
environment, on the promenade, and have secured £40k funding for Keep Cumbria 
Buzzin to include wild planting schemes and border management along the promenade, 
harbour and coastal park.

 Allerdale Local Focus Hub - since moving into Allerdale House we have increased 
referrals into the hub by allowing direct contact between ABC, Police and partners such 
as social housing organisations. 

 10p swims are being funded again to take place during the summer holidays in 4 pools in 
Allerdale (Workington, Cockermouth, Keswick and Wigton).  Keswick Leisure Pool 
changing rooms have been refurbished with new flooring and showers.

 Physical activity referral scheme – the pilot in Workington is still going well with over 100 
people now on the programme and taking part in physical activity as a way of improving a 
range of health conditions. Wigton has also now started.   

 Community led housing – we are now actively working with 6 Community Groups to 
deliver affordable housing.

 Completed induction training for all members. 

Where are there issues?
There were 19 projects/activities reported as amber at the end of Q1 and one reported as red.  

 There has been a delay to the ICTIS project start up caused by a challenge to the 
procurement process.  However, this has now been resolved and we expect the project to 
progress during Q2.  

 Work to facilitate the development of a new housing site at Westfield with funding from 
the Accelerated Construction Programme has some issues to resolve before it can 
progress.  The Council is still waiting for Homes England to confirm the offer of funding.

 Allonby to Silloth cycle path is progressing with planning permission now granted. 
The next phase of the project will be to secure common land consent for the route 
and secure the match funding required. 

 Work to implement the Heritage Strategy has is progressed more slowly than originally 
planned, but a launch event to establish a Heritage Forum is now planned for October.

Page 44



3

 Work to get Curwen Hall off the ‘at risk’ register has encountered cost issues and delays 
to grants from Heritage England have led to delays in contractors’ availability.

 Public realm improvements incorporating Brow Top, Central Way Underpass and 
Workington Leisure Centre are running more slowly than originally anticipated, but is 
progressing. In implementing the Central Way Underpass improvements we are working 
to address provision for people currently parking in the underpass.  

 The series of projects (5.1 to 5.6) that form part of the Transformation and 
Commercialisation programme are flagged as amber (with the exception of 5.4) – these 
have been delayed due to the amount of resources needed in managing additional 
customer contact generated by the waste contract. The projects are now starting to be 
fully scoped out.  

 The impact of the changes to local government financing remains unknown as 
government has yet to detail the changes.  The Medium term Financial Plan will be 
updated as new information becomes available.

 Implementation of the new web-based land and property system (Arcus) has experienced 
significant issues.  However, by including the project in the Transformation and 
Commercial programme it has enabled us to manage resources more effectively to 
create additional capacity for this project and the project is now largely on track.

Key performance indicators (Appendix B)

 63% of KPIs are on target 

What went well in quarter 1:
 Significant improvement in sickness absence levels following focused work and initiatives 

from an average 12.72 days per employee per year in Q4 2018/19 to 5.40 days in Q1 
2019/20.

 100% of major planning applications determined within the statutory period 
 Spend with local Cumbrian suppliers above target – 46.5% against a target of 42%.
 Above target leisure centre usage by the over 60s and juniors.
 Homelessness – all homeless decisions made within the statutory timeframe and above 

target successful homeless preventions and relief outcomes
 All private water supplies programmed for Q1 were sampled
 Benefits processing – we continue to exceed targets on processing times for claims
 100% of local land change searches carried out within target timeframe
 91% of DFGs approved within the target timeframe
 Website and social media still showing strong performance in terms of views and 

followers
 On target resolution of ICT support calls
 Above target occupancy rates of the Council’s property portfolio

Where are there issues?
10 KPIs are reported as amber (off target) and 5 as red (significantly off target) 

Page 45



4

 Proportion of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid within 14 days – 
92.1% against a target of 98.0%.  Delays to authorising payments have impacted 
on this KPI, but the expectation is that performance will improve in Q2. 

 Proportion of Council spend on goods and services with local (Allerdale) suppliers 
– 24.8% against a target of 42.0%.  There has been a large number of separate 
spends on specialist goods and services which were not available locally in Q1.

 Leisure Centre usage by concessionary groups (Workington and the Wave) was 
significantly lower than target – whilst numbers at Workington continue to be high, 
and the new Wave gym is going well in its first 4 - 6 months of opening, it has had 
limited use by this particular target group as yet. Work is being undertaken to see 
how concessionary group usage can be increased at these facilities.

 Food safety inspections – only 80% carried out against a target of 100% 
representing one Category B inspection not being carried out.   Resource planning 
and prioritisation has been undertaken to ensure A and B category premises are 
inspected within target time.

 Number of housing units granted planning permission was only 47 against a target 
of 107. There are still some major applications held in abeyance (at the agent's 
requests) a major application was recently refused by members at Panel.

 Number of new housing completions was 77 against a target of 84.  Whilst we 
make efforts to facilitate completions we are limited in the scope of our influence in 
this area.

 Abandoned call rate – 19% against a target of 7%.  This has been significantly 
affected by the volume of calls being received relating to the new waste services

 Council Tax and NNDR collection rates are marginally below target, but we are 
confident the end of year target will be achieved.

Details of actions/interventions being taken to address underperformance where KPIs are red 
are given under each priority heading and in Appendix B. 

Key Corporate Risks (Appendix C)

All strategic risks identified are contained within the Corporate Risk and Issues Log. Key risks 
(those which score 9 and above) are included in this report.  There are currently 15 key risks 
which have been reviewed by the Senior Management Team. The current Key Risks Report 
setting out mitigating actions can be found in Appendix C to this report.

The information in this report relates to activity to the end of June 2019.

Page 46



5

Definitions

Projects/activities Key Performance Indicators

Blue Complete

Green
Everything is on target / satisfactory 
progress is being made / no action 
required

On, or better than, target

Amber
There are some concerns over achieving 
deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to 
rectify, but plans are in place to get the 
project back on track

Worse than target (up to 10% variance) 
- some action may be required to 
improve performance

Red
There are significant concerns over 
achieving outputs / there is serious 
slippage in the timetable / there are major 
issues to rectify

Significantly worse than target (>10% 
variance) – action required to improve 
performance

Appendices
A. Key projects/activities
B. Key performance measures
C. Key corporate risks

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix A - Q1 2019/20 report - activities/projects

Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

1.1 Implement the ‘strengthening general conditions’ growth actions within the Business 
Growth Strategy including supporting local entrepreneurial initiatives and managing the 
ERDF bid for the Information and Communication Technology Improvement Support 
Project 

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy Delay in project start up casused by a challenge to the procurement process.  This has now been resolved  and 
we expect the project to progress during Q2.  

Amber

1.2 Implement the Strengthening Manufacturing offer actions within the Business Growth 
Strategy such as growing the manufacturing forum and large employer engagement

31/03/2020 Nik Hardy The Large Employers Group did not meet in Quarter 1. We are working on how to organise SME business fora - 
size, theme etc. Green

1.4 Work with the Homes and Communities Agency to facilitate the development of new 
sites for housing, this may include partnering arrangements with developers. Specific 
targets will be set for individual sites once identified. 

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan The Council is still waiting for HE to confirm the offer of funding for Westfield Drive.
Amber

1.5 Undertake formal consultations and submission to Secretary of State for examination prior 
to adoption of Local Plan Part 2 in July 2018 to identify sites for development and support 
growth in the borough 

31/01/2020 Nik Hardy The Local Plan hearings took place over two weeks in May. The Inspector is currently considering what 
modifcations are required to the Plan to make it "sound". The proposed modifications will be subject to a six 
week consultation prior to the Inspector issuing his final report.

Green

1.6 Deliver actions to develop new market and affordable housing as set out in the Housing 
Strategy including:
• Maximising housing opportunities to drive economic growth
• Developing partnerships to deliver new housing
• Using Council assets to deliver housing 
• Undertaking research and policy development activity on self-build and custom build to 
identify available land and opportunities

2017/21 Kevin Kerrigan/ Nik 
Hardy

The Council has now received the appraisal on Ultilities Infrastructure and Energy which was commissioned to 
look at potential costs associated with this work and wether this would reduce the gap in funding and change the 
a funding offer to the Council. We are still waiting for HE to confirm what their offer to Allerdale would be for this 
development. We have carried out additional publicity on SBCB and includes grant funding opportunities for 
applicants on the register. We have had 8 enquiries and are awaiting confirmation on whether they wish to be 
placed on the register.

Green

1.7 Plan for how we use additional retained growth through Business Rates Pool and 
undertake risk analysis and scenario planning for loss of that growth   

31/03/2020 Catherine 
Nicholson/ Nik 
Hardy

To ensure reported pool benefits are accurate, the business rates pool produce regular in-year projections and 
monitor national and local risks closely to ensure we are aware of all relevant issues and that this is reflected 
within the projections/scenario planning for the business rates pool. The Q1 projections will be reported to 
Executive as part of the Q1 finance report.

Green

1.9 Increase percentage of Council spend with local businesses providing goods and services 
through activity to proactively engage with local businesses as part of procurement and 
commissioning 

Increase local 
spend from 
40% to 42% by 
March 2019

Brendan Carlin Total spend with suppliers in Cumbria was 46% (24% with Allerdale suppliers and 22% with the rest of Cumbria). 
There was a large number of separate spends on specialist goods and services which were not available locally in 
Q1. The team continue to look at opportunities to link with local suppliers to encourage them to register on The 
Chest Procurement portal where they can benefit from potential tenders from across the North West including 
all Cumbrian Districts. Social value measures including the creation of local jobs is included in all Invitations to 
Quote.

Amber

2.1 Deliver the increasing wider employment actions within the Business Growth Strategy to 
gain a better understanding of the issues facing an under-represented group in Allerdale’s 
workforce 

2017/20 Nik Hardy Presentation from Copeland on how its established Partnership has developed over the years. Presentation on 
'Solway Views' - resident research work in Moss Bay and Salterbeck. Next meeting will be in July. Green

2.2 Work with partners to ensure that there is a network of support for young people to 
enhance their employability (Business Growth Strategy – Strengthening Manufacturing 
priority actions) 

2018/19 Nik Hardy This continues to be achieved through the BEC Business Cluster Social Value Group - Business School 
Collaboration Project raising aspirations and awareness of the many opportunities with employers in West 
Cumbria. This project has been entered into and won awards.

Green

3.1

Economic opportunity and growth

Implement the ‘Improve the vitality of Allerdale’s local centres’ actions within the Business Growth Strategy including: 

P
age 49



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

3.1a Delivering activity to implement the Maryport Delivery Plan 31/03/2019 Graeme Wilson In order to achieve the strategic goals and ambitions for Maryport the initial project has been superseded by a 
Programme of activities for the regeneration of the town. This will improve the management of a range of 
projects and effectively manage resources and risks across projects. There are 11 projects in the Programme, 
which report monthly to the Senior Management Team. Projects include a range of new 
developments/opportunities and regeneration of existing assets within areas around the Town, Harbour and 
Promenade. All Maryport Projects are currently on track for budget, timescales and in managing risks.

Green

3.1c Undertake feasibility work to develop proposals to support the development of Keswick 
Showcase Area (working with LDNPA)

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan This project is now one of the Regeneration and Investment Programme projects.  The present focus has been a 
Transport study jointly commissioned through the LDNPA, County Council and Town Council. Projects are being 
scoped and robust business cases will need to be developed before any projects go live.

Amber

3.2

3.2b Work with UCLAN to develop initiatives to support tourism in West Cumbria 30/09/2018 Kevin Kerrigan The internship ended in June 2019 with the intern meeting their targets namely: presenting a well received 
report to Cockermouth Chamber of Trade on how businesses could address the challenges high street traders 
face; researched and wrote content for Trip Advisor to raise our profile as a visitor destination, and providing 
content in Hindi for our visitor website to target the growing Indian visitor market.

Blue

3.2e Work with partners to develop a night time economy plan for Workington 31/03/2020 Kevin Kerrigan Plans are being developed with partners that supports both the retail and night time economies in Workington in 
the run up to Christmas 2019. Green

3.2f Maximise the opportunities for Allerdale business and organisations from the 
commencement of services from Carlisle Lake District Airport by developing packages for 
customers.

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan Flights to and from Carlisle Lake District Airport commenced in July 2019. The locating of our Virtual Reality 
experience within the airport gives us a high profile as a destination of choice for visitors to the new facility. The 
operator has announced they will appoint a third party package specialist to develop Cumbria package tours for 
customers; we will influence the package specialist to include Allerdale businesses.

Green

3.2g Work with partners to target the Chinese market to attract more Chinese visitors 
especially independent travellers to Allerdale

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan The 25 partners of the  Northern Lake District China Forum of which we are Steering Group members, have 
completed the first year of marketing activity delivered by our marketing partner and China specialist, Marketing 
Manchester. Partners are pleased with the work to date and year 2 activity is being planned with Marketing 
Manchester.

Green

2.3 Deliver the Tackling Poverty Strategy action plan including:
• ensuring people in need can access food and supporting food initiatives and schemes
• addressing fuel poverty
• supporting advice and advocacy services  
• working with partners to address barriers to employment 

31/12/2020 Nik Hardy/ Paul 
Wood

Grants are being issued to individuals and community groups through the two small grants schemes which were 
set up as part of the Tackling Poverty Strategy. The newly formed Allerdale Work and Skills Partnership have met 
and are to develop their terms of reference and action plan. Workshop planned for Q2 to map out support 
provision within Allerdale for work and skills. Green

2.5

2.5a Undertaking early preventative work and work towards the requirements of the new 
Homelessness Reduction Act

31/03/2021 Paul Wood HRA fully embedded with the team. Full training has been carried out to ensure efficiency and suitability of 
working methodology. Working more with DWP and Prevention on cases prior to the users becoming homeless. Green

2.5b Reviewing temporary homeless accommodation to ensure resource matches demand 31/03/2021 Paul Wood One review was carried out but a further review is underway looking at the increase in demand and suitability of 
the units. Green

Stronger and healthier communities

Deliver the actions in the Housing Strategy to reduce or prevent homelessness including:

Implement the new approach to the tourism offer actions within the Business Growth Plan including branding activity, website development, and promotional materials including:

P
age 50



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

2.5c Exploring options to provide a full emergency accommodation service for single non-
priority homeless

31/03/2021 Paul Wood This work is ongoing and works well when we have provision within our temporary accommodation units. 
Further work is ongoing looking at further agencies that may assist in this venture. Green

2.5e Carry out full review and audit of the homelessness section to determine value for money 
and best practice methodologies

31/03/2021 Paul Wood One full review was conducted in 2018 but a further review will be carried out this year after the HRA has been in 
operation for 12 months Green

3.11 Work with partner agencies on the development of the Allerdale Multi-Agency Problem-
solving Hub to provide a more joined up approach to tackling crime, disorder and anti-
social behaviour across Allerdale’s towns.
Co-ordinate input into the Hub across the Council’s various teams to explore options for 
working with Hub partners and ensure all issues addressed in a co-ordinated way.  For 
example, work to reduce or prevent homelessness and tackle other housing related issues 
such as complaints relating to antisocial and criminal behaviours in the rented sector and 
empty properties. 

Sharon Sewell The Allerdale Local Focus Hub is now embedded into Allerdale House. Since moving into Allerdale House we have 
increased referrals into the hub by allowing direct contact between ABC, Police and partners such as social 
housing organisations. We currently have 14 statutory partners and numerous voluntary partners all linked via 
the Allerdale Local Focus Hub and are working to incorporate more community based projects as the hub evolves 
and refine our problem solving procedures to offer a greater response to community problems. Green

4.1 Support the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum in addressing health  outcomes in 
relation to healthy weight, smoking cessation, healthy attitudes towards alcohol, mental 
wellbeing and ageing well.
Focus in 2018/19 on falls prevention, smoking and healthy weight.

31/03/2019 Nik Hardy The Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum meeting planned for Q2. The two remaining ICC engagement events 
have been carried out in Keswick and Wigton. District leads are working with the County Council Public Health 
Team to develop Public Health Strategy. Solway Views is being exhibited at several events including the Allerdale 
Work and Skills Partnership. Work ongoing around falls prevention, smoking cessation and having a healthy 
attitude towards alcohol.

Green

4.2 Support improvements to leisure facilities and open spaces in our communities to 
encourage active participation in physical activity and improve health outcomes 

31/03/2019 Charles Holmes Work on two Maryport pitches now complete. Work on Derwent Park pitch almost complete. Improvement of 
paths in Jubilee Park (Harrington) has taken place as part of a bigger £45k improvement scheme. The Highfield 
sports project is ongoing, the squash club is being refurbished to become a club house for multiple sports, the 
project is being lead by the Titans Rugby Club. Cockermouth Tennis Courts in Harris Park have been resurfaced.

Green

4.3 Promote and deliver a programme of activity to encourage health and active lifestyles 
including a walking and cycling scheme to develop a programme of free health walks and 
cycle rides across Allerdale.

31/03/2019 Charles Holmes Walking for Health is still being developed around the borough with partners, Active Cumbria, delivering training 
to organisations to be able to lead their own walks. New groups have recently been set up in Wigton and 
Workington. Cumbria Cycling Strategy Partnership are still delivering the free cycle rides in Allerdale. Working 
with Beacon Hill School on a British Cycling funding application for a capital project to develop a cycle track on 
the School grounds.

Green

4.4 Work with GLL to develop the leisure offer within the Council’s leisure facilities, 
increasing usage across all sites, with a focus on young people, people with a disability and 
those at risk of being inactive.  

31/03/2019 Charles Holmes 10p swims to take place during the summer holidays in 4 Allerdale pools. New inflatable 'soft play' has been 
purchased for The Wave Centre, to be installed in July. Green

4.5 Improve the provision of leisure and sporting facilities working with partners to support 
future development 

31/03/2019 Charles Holmes/ 
Kevin Kerrigan

Keswick Leisure Pool changing rooms have been refurbished with new flooring and showers.
Green

4.6 Work with partners to look at different ways to encourage social prescribing of physical 
activity through the use of community facilities and leisure centres 

Introduce pilots 
in Workington 
and Wigton 
by March 2019

Charles Holmes Pilot in Workington still going well with over 100 people now on the programme and taking part in physical 
activity as a way of improving a range of health conditions. Wigton has also now started and the scheme has 
been extended to the end of the year to ensure enough time to start to see some results. Funding will cease in 
December, priority to look at how scheme can continue in areas where there is no GLL facility.

Green

P
age 51



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

4.10 Continue to work with developers and planning authorities to ensure that air quality 
impact assessments are carried out - our priority is to maintain good air quality within 
Allerdale and understand the potential impacts of proposed major developments 
individually and collectively on local air quality. 

Maintain 
baseline 
monitoring at 
11 key locations 
until March 
2019

Sharon Sewell 2019 Annual Screening Report completed and submitted to DEFRA containing results of annual monitoring over 
11 sites 18-19. Trend is consistent with previous years of monitoring with no exceedances or areas of concern. 
Educative Social Media and Community work has been undertaken inline with new Government Strategy. Natural 
England are now taking the lead on best practice control of Ammonia emissions from Agricultural activities via 
Development Control consultation (reduction of PM2.5) previously EH. Environmental Health to focus on 
Industrial, CHP and gas / diesel STOR sites. Number of applications appear to have reduced (Fluctuates with 
Renewable Heat Incentive and energy bids)

Green

4.11 Deliver the National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme and investigate options for the 
introduction of a new fees scheme for food safety interventions.

from April 2018 Sharon Sewell The National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme continues to be delivered. The time from Q2 and Q3 will be used by 
officer's to collect data on the time taken to deliver requests for rescores to help establish accurate local 
authority costs. Options for the introduction of a new scheme can then be considered and a scheme 
implemented as necessary

Green

4.16 Work with partners as part of the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership to 
address the priorities identified the CSP Strategic Plan

31/03/2019 Sharon Sewell The Allerdale Local Focus Hub is now embedded into Allerdale House. The Hub is key to the tactical delivery of 
the CSP Action Plan. Key project deliverables are linked to the CSP objectives. The CSP support team sit within the 
Hub at Allerdale House.

Green

2.4

2.4a Empowering communities to deliver affordable housing through Community Land Trusts 2/3 new CLTs 
established by 
2021

Kevin Kerrigan Allerdale are actively working with 6 Community Groups to deliver affordable housing. These include; Keswick 
Community Housing Trust, Above Derwent Community Land Trust, Borrowdale Parish Council, Caldbeck Parish 
Council, Keswick Youth Centre and Threlkeld Housing Association Ltd. In Q1 A grant agreement to Caldbeck 
Parish Council was awarded to support planning and architects fees for self build properties for local families.

Green

2.4b Supporting developers to provide a range of options to deliver affordable housing through 
HCA schemes

31/03/2021 Kevin Kerrigan 2 meetings held in Q1 regarding progress being made by Community Land Trust in Keswick on new development. 
Site visit to Derwent forest to discuss progress and opportunities for customers to access SBCB grant funding. Green

2.4c Proactive work with RPs to evaluate allocations for housing to ensure there is a fair and 
transparent approach to support those in greatest housing need

31/03/2021 Kevin Kerrigan In Q1 there were no lettings for affordable housing linked to S106 obligations. In addition a new group has been 
established between Housing Policy Team and Operational RP managers. These group meeting will be bi-annual 
and will focus on current market conditions, challenges and issues for RPs, Policy updates and Council future 
plans.

Green

2.4d Maximising affordable housing provision through early discussion/negotiation with 
planning officers and developers

31/03/2021 Kevin Kerrigan During Q1 I have held 2 meetings, one with the Community land trust and one with private developer operating 
in Allerdale. These meetings are held bi-annually, and discussions focused on new developments opportunities 
that will deliver affordable housing in the area, timescales and support needed from the Council. In additional we 
also looked at how specific SBCB development is progressing.

Green

3.3 Continue to support coastal communities teams and the implementation of their 
economic plans – support delivery of cycle track

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan This project is now part of the Regeneration and Investment Programme. The Cycle path is a key project within 
the programme for costal communities in Allerdale. Planning consent for the project has now been obtained. 
Coastal erosion has meant re-routing some sections of the path. Although this has increased costs this has been 
mitigated by there being less off carriageway sections than originally anticipated. The next phase of the project 
will be to secure common land consent for the route and secure the match funding required. These are seen as 
moderate risks going forward for the project and the project team have said that the project is on track for 
meeting the next project milestone.

Amber

3.4 Implementing the actions contained within the Heritage Strategy to develop a Heritage 
Forum for Allerdale, examine the impact of heritage on council services and conduct an 
impact assessment for heritage in Allerdale

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Charles Holmes/ 
Nik Hardy

The stakeholder meeting planned for June 2019 to identify priorities was postponed and is due to be rearranged 
for autumn 2019. Amber

Quality places to live
Deliver the objective to develop affordable housing in the Housing Strategy including:

P
age 52



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

3.5 Work to get Curwen Hall off ‘at risk’ register to enhance the heritage offer in Workington 
and make the Hall more sustainable for the future

31/03/2019 Catherine Nicholson Heritage England came back with a grant offer in June 2019. However having spoken to the original successful 
contractor, he informed us, he was unable to start on  site in August (ecological window) due to having taken on 
other projects whilst we waited to hear about the grant application. The grant application was based on this 
contractors costings and therefore going to another contractor at this point was not an option. The next 
ecological window in which the works could be carried out is March - July 2020. We have gone back to H.E. to ask 
if the grant offer would still be available during this time period - we await their response

Amber

3.6

3.6e Develop programme of public realm  improvements incorporating Brow Top, Central Way 
Underpass and Workington Leisure Centre

Phase 2 
31/03/2019

Charles Holmes Part of the Regeneration and Investment Programme. The ongoing work on the Central Underpass is a key 
project within the programme for Workington. The next phase of the project will be to continue with 
consultations with stakeholders including businesses and the leisure provider. Initial engagement has been very 
positive. There is an issue with the loss of parking under the bridge for blue badge holders and as a result there is 
further work identified to look at parking provision for Bingo users. Risks are largely associated with budget and 
will require additional funding to be identified. So far partners have indicated in-principle to a contribution . 
Overall the project is  on track for meeting the next project milestone.

Amber

3.9 Undertake a number of high-profile environmental enforcement media campaigns 
raising the awareness of the work of the Council in tackling dog-fouling, littering and fly-
tipping.

3 campaigns 
undertaken in 
2018/19

Charles Holmes Campaigns undertaken - Dog fouling patrols launched on bikes using the cycleways working in conjunction with 
Workington Parkrun marshals and Sustrans resulting in a much lower level of fouling. We have launched an 
education programme focusing on Littering and dog fouling incl. My Allerdale app with 4 schools to date in 
Brigham, Dearham, Victoria Infants and Broughton.  Children’s art work is to be put on the side of a sweeper and 
Refuse Collection Vehicle (RCV) at the launch of our autumn dog fouling campaign. We are also working with 
town and parish councils to identify areas of concern stencilling footpaths and pavements and publicising on 
social media is on-going. We have distributed 600 leaflets in Workington addressing Fly tipping in back lanes, 
advising of the penalties for fly tipping and advice on waste minimisation and how to dispose of unwanted items 
correctly. Officers also door knocked the worst areas gathering intelligence and giving advice all publicised on 
social media we saw an improvement prior to the current waste problems. In addition we have attended/ 
supported or led on 45 community clean ups.
Campaigns planned - Education programme (with schools requesting lesson plans) using cotton bags printed with 
Allerdale Borough Council on one side and blank on the other the children will decorate this side with their 
message on what they have learned in an effort to educate people. Dog Fouling – In late September, children’s 
art work will be on the side of an RCV and sweeper with a planned media campaign. We plan to identify fly-
tipping hot spots in early spring 2020 leaving fly tipping onsite, using it as a hard hitting visual education tool with 
crime scene investigation tape and attach a supersized price tag to it saying, ‘This will cost £200 to remove the 
same as 100 free swim sessions’  use press and comms to publicise the cost of fly tipping to the community and 
emphasise how unsightly it is.  

Green

3.10

3.10a Delivering Empty Property Grants 10 grants in 
2019/20 

Kevin Kerrigan In Q1 one Empty Property Grant has been completed and is occupied and one grant has been approved. It has 
been agreed that the Empty Homes budget allocation for 2019/20 will be used to deliver Empty Property Grants 
in Maryport as part of the Maryport Regeneration programme. Over the coming months letters will be sent to all 
empty home owners in Maryport advising of the funding.

Green

3.10c Develop an Empty Homes Strategy Kevin Kerrigan To be reviewed in line with the refreshed housing strategy 2016-2021.
Amber

Deliver activity as part of the Housing Strategy to reduce the number of long term empty homes including:

Undertake a programme of improvements to our nature reserves and open spaces to encourage access to and enjoyment of open spaces and conservation of the natural environment:

P
age 53



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

4.7 Support festivals and events through grants support and direct funding to enhance the 
vitality and raise the profile of the area and offer cultural and sporting events to improve 
health and wellbeing

15 festivals and 
events through 
grant support 
by March 2019

Charles Holmes The orignal activity to support festials and events has been acheived and small festivals and events will continue 
to be supported through a small grants fund.  A further project is now one in a range of projects as part of the 
Transformation and Commercial Programme. Initially the project has taken ownership of running two events 
inhouse that had previously been outsourced (previous events provider withdrew from planning these events). 
Running these events inhouse ensures that they will still go ahead. This fits with our strategy of increasing visitor 
numbers and income for Allerdale. The longer term plan is to develop proposals for Festivals and Events looking 
at alternative delivery models, which will include options to run not only Allerdale Festivals and Events but 
generate income for the Council by offering Events services to others.

Green

4.9 Improve the environmental quality of our beaches through delivery of our Beach 
Management Plan and taking part in the LovemyBeach campaign.  We intend to maintain 
a bathing water classification of “good" at Allonby. We will actively support and promote 
the "Call of Nature" campaign and support ‘Turning Tides’.

31/03/2019 Sharon Sewell Recently took part in the launch for Active Coast week in Allonby to promote LovemyBeach campaign. We invited 
the regional LovemyBeach co-ordinator who organised a beach clean with primary school children from the local 
school. We publicised the event on social media and appropriate links to LovemyBeach webpage.We continue to 
work with the Rivers Trust, we intend to organise a joint promotional event in Q2 which will involve the "Call of 
Nature" campaign. We remain an active member of the LovemyBeach board meetings for Morecombe Bay and 
Cumbria which provides the opportunity to work with other stakeholders.We are now 3 months into the new 
Bathing Water Season, we continue to participate in the Environment Agency's pollution risk forecast to inform 
the public of water quality and reduce the number of failed water samples , we are now fully automated with the 
Electronic Signage at Allonby.

Green

4.13

4.13b Ensure new legislation around the licensing of HMOS is enforced and all HMOs falling into 
the new licensing criteria are licensed. 

Issue new HMO 
licenses Oct 
2018 onwards 

Sharon Sewell Issued 6 HMO licences in Q1, work plan to be produced in Q2 to ensure that all premises falling into the new 
criteria have been issued with a HMO licence.

Green

4.15

4.15a Delivering a funding programme for small to medium flood prevention work in our 
communities.

Allocate 
funding by 
March 2019

Paul Wood This funding stream is still available for all residents, further communication will be cascaded to all parties as a 
reminder of the grant funding Green

4.15b Continue to support partner organisations especially the Environment Agency to access 
relevant funding to allow communities to become more resilient to flooding events

31/03/2020 Paul Wood Attend area meetings as a partner with the EA looking at flood resilience measures and funding availability. This 
work will be ongoing for a number of years Green

Transformation and governance
5.1 Deliver the Customer Access Strategy to improve the service we deliver to customers 

through improving service consistency, delivering right first time and improving the use of 
customer intelligence to develop and design the service. Promote self-service where 
appropriate to streamline processes between customer and the organisation.

31/03/2019 Paul Wood There are a number of projects that are now part of Transformation and Commercial Programme. The objective 
for this programme is that the Council is self-sustaining by 2030. The projects 5.1 to 5.6 are all vital in us working 
smarter as an organisation. In quarter 1 these projects have started to be scoped. However all have been delayed 
due to the amount of resources needed in managing additional customer contact generated by the waste 
contract. The projects are now starting to be scoped out and these will be reported on.

Amber

5.2 Undertake a Channel shift programme to significantly increase the use of online and self-
service channels with a focus for 2018/19 on promoting online billing

31/03/2020
100 
registrations for 
online billing 
per month

Paul Wood As above, however there has been a piece of work commissioned from an external consultant from a high 
performing local authority recognised as a leader in this field to assess where Allerdale are with channel shift and 
our digital journey and identify opportunities going forward. The report also looks at possible commercial 
opportunities. The report will act as a 'Spring Board ' for identifying future projects in the Transformation and 
Commercial Programme. These will be reported on.

Amber

Undertake activity with partners to improve flooding resilience across Allerdale including:

Deliver activity in the Housing Strategy to raise standards in the private rented sector including:

P
age 54



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

5.3 Continue programme of co-location of customer access points across the district into 
libraries/other appropriate locations. Costs associated with the moves to include 
branding, accommodation changes, advertising, ICT moves etc.

One additional 
co-located 
customer 
access point by 
March 2019

Paul Wood Discussions are scheduled to take place with the County Council to investigate opprtunities for co-location. 

Amber

5.4 Review our Revenues and Benefits Shared arrangements with Carlisle CC to ensure that 
future arrangements provide value for money

Review by May 
2020
Revised arrange-
ments in place 
by Aug 2020

Paul Wood Initial workshop held with partners, ICT systems review group established with Allerdale taking the lead.  Options 
for provision of ICT services are ongoing. 

Green

5.5 Develop and begin delivery of a new Digital Strategy with a focus on Digital Customer 
Services, a Digitally enabled workforce, Digital Skills and Digital Citizens across Allerdale.
Developing a managed ICT services offer for organisations and businesses across the 
district.
Review remaining shared ICT arrangements with Carlisle CC

Develop 
strategy by 
December 2018
Dec 2018
Aug 2018

Paul Wood Digital strategy draft document completed, review of ICT shared arrangements with Carlisle ICT under review as 
detailed in 5.4 

Amber

5.6 Deliver the Digital Allerdale project to improve digital access including:
• Town centre Wifi
• Business broadband
• Developing the Internet of Things
• Developing the use of LoRaWAN

Pilot scheme  
running by June 
2018 
Further 
schemes 
developed by 
March 2019

Paul Wood Digital Allerdale includes a number of projects looking at how we can make it easier for residents, businesses, 
Council employees and members to access digital technologies. Town Centre WiFi was one of these projects. 
Whilst the project successfully procured a partner to work with and deliver free broadband in our towns the 
project faltered due to problems in installing the equipment needed on the street furniture not owned by ABC. 
There have been delays whilst issues are being invesigated and the project team are hopeful they will be 
resolved. Recent meetings between the County Council and the supplier have taken place with a view to be able 
to deliver the project.The Internet of things and LoRaWan were invesigated as potential projects and an initial 
pilot scheme extablished, the business case to continue to develop further has not delivered the required results 
and we are now investigating the possibility of linking IOT to the town centre wifi initiative with the supplier. 
Business Broadband is reported on in 1.1.

Amber

5.7 Implement new contracting arrangements for waste and recycling, recycling 
reprocessing, street cleansing and grounds maintenance 

Commen-
cement of new 
contracts by 
April 2019

Charles Holmes This project is part of the Transformation and Commercial Programme. New Contract Management regimes have 
not been implemented as part of the new contract as contract negotiations with the supplier are still taking 
place. Alternative delivery models are being investigated in the event of contract failure. Red

5.10 Implement the Asset Management Plan in order to maximise income for the Council 
including the development of new units at Reedlands Road

31/03/2019 Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Catherine Nicholson

Reedlands Road is a project in the Regeneration and Investment Programme. The vision for the programme is 
that the Council will increase growth and in so doing increase revenue for the Council. The Reedlands Road 
project is a key project within the programme. The next milestone in the project is to complete the detailed 
planning. Cost forecasts indicate that costs will exceed approved budgets. Therefore as part of the planning stage 
there has been value engineering to ensure materials and methods employed on the project identify less 
expensive alternatives without sacrificing functionality. This project has been highlighted as moderate to high risk 
by the Project Team due to the budget forecast. Whilst there is scope to reduce costs through the value 
engineering this needs to be in line with required outputs agreed with the external funder.

Amber

P
age 55



Ref Project/activity
Target 
timescale/meas
ure

Head of Service
2019/20

Q1 update
Q1 RAG 
status

5.11 Undertake an assessment of the impact of the changes to local government financing 
(the Fair Funding Review, the move to 75% retention of business rates and the reset of 
baselines in 2021) so that the Council can understand and plan for the implications in our 
Medium Term Financial Plan

31/03/2019 Catherine Nicholson No new policy annoucments have been made and the Council continues to maintain a watching brief over 
changes to local government funding . However, the ongoing political turbulence around Brexit coupled with the 
recent process of electing a new Leader of the Conservative Party and Prime Minister, means there is now a 
strong likelihood that there will not be a (3-year) spending review in 2019. Instead the most likely scenario is for a 
1-year SR, no Fair Funding Review in 2019 and no changes to the Buisness Rates Retention Scheme in 2010/21. Amber

5.12 Undertake work with new Cumbria Business Rates Pool to ensure that the risk to 
Allerdale is minimised

31/03/2019 Catherine Nicholson Before entering into the business rates pool the potential risks were reviewed to ensure they were at an 
acceptable level and where necessary mitigated through the pool agreement. The business rates pool produces 
regular in-year projections and monitors national and local risks closely to ensure the Authority is aware of all 
relevant issues and appropriate action is taken to address emerging issues 

Green

5.18 Deliver a member development programme to support the Council in achieving its 
ambitions

30/04/2019 Sharon Sewell The Induction training is now complete for all members. Due to the high number of newly elected members and 
the changes in the political leadership following the May election additional time has been allowed for changes to 
begin to embed. The TNA survey will now be carried out mid-August followed by individual PDPs September 
onwards.

Green

5.19 Deliver programmes and initiatives to increase awareness of terrorism and train 
personnel on the requirements of the Prevent strategy as stated in the Government’s 
Counter Terrorism strategy CONTEST 

April 2018 
onwards

Paul Wood We sit on the area Prevent Board meetings, have access to CHANNEL and RMAC. Further work is required to train 
everyone around Prevent, especially the Councils new Leadership Amber

5.20 Implementation of web-based Arcus system in Housing and Health, Development 
Management, Building Control and Licensing

April 2018 
onwards

Kevin Kerrigan/ 
Sharon Sewell

The Implementation of the Arcus System is part of the Transformation and Commercial Programme. This is the 
use of a cloud based application to streamline services such as planning and building control management. There 
have been delays in the implementation of Arcus . By including the project in the Transformation and Commercial 
programme it has enabled us to manage resources more effectively to create additional capacity for this project. 
The project team are still having some issues with the supplier in implementing the digital solution in a timely 
manner, however these are being managed and the project is largely on track.

Amber

Definitions

BRAG Progress against plan

Blue Complete

Red There are significant  concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / there are major issues to rectify

Amber There are concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but plans are in place to get the project back on track

Green Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required

P
age 56



Appendix B - Q1 2019/20 report - key performance indicators 

PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19

Q4

2018/19
Annual 
value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q1 commentary

KEG02 No. of businesses engaged Nik Hardy Quarterly High 25 76 5 4 A q 75
4 businesses have approached Enterprise Answers for a loan. 285 businesses invited to 
the 19 July 2019 Tourism Breakfast Briefing.20 expressions of interest received from 
businesses for the Aspatria and Silloth facelift scheme.

KDS01
% of major planning applications determined within 
statutory period

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 100% 94% 90% 100% G tu 90%
This KPI is volatile due to relative low number of majors received. We have used 
extensions of time to meet (and exceed target) and, given we have a senior planner 
vacancy.

KDS02
% of minor and other planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 86% 89% 90% 88% A p 90%
Recovery later in the quarter, but acknowledge there is a need for improvement. We 
have reduced reliance on extensions of time for minors but now need improvement in 
real time determination periods.

KFS02
% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses paid 
within 14 days

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 93.6% 93.1% 98.0% 92.1% A q 98.0%

In Q1 we paid 92.1% of local suppliers within 14 days which is slightly higher than Q1 
2018/19 when 92% was achieved. Delays in authorising NNDR bills payable to the council 
by Contract Services caused local suppliers to fall to 86.3% in May but overall there was 
only 1 local supplier directly affected by a payment delay. Q1 was also impacted by the 
need for the Community Services resources to be re-directed to departmental issues 

KCTC16
% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and 
services with local (Allerdale) suppliers and 
companies  

Brendan 
Carlin

Quarterly High 30.5% 38.2 42.0% 24.8% R q 42.0%

Below target due to high proportion of total spend on projects such as the waste 
mobilisation including the purchase of refuse collection vehicles and bins, none of which 
are supplied in Allerdale/Cumbria. Although the level of expenditure is below target, the 
number of local supplier has increased by 277 (17%). More work is planned to encourage 
local supplier to participate in Allerdale procurement exercises. 

KCTC17
% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and 
services with local (Cumbrian) suppliers and 
companies  

Brendan 
Carlin

Quarterly High -
New for 
2019/20

42.0% 46.5% G p 42.0% Spend within Cumbria is above target.

KCS03a Leisure centre usage - Keswick
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 18095 74462 19007 19442 G p 75951 Q1 target achieved

KCS03b Leisure centre usage - Cockermouth
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 49758 175490 41445 45693 G q 179000 Q1 target achieved

KCS03c Leisure centre usage - Workington
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 86927 312374 78914 74998 A q 327992
Slightly below target for Q1, two new gyms have opened in Workington which has had a 
small impact on the number of members.

KCS03d The Wave usage
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High 6792 25395 6176 7434 G q 26665 Q1 target achieved.

KCS04d
Leisure Centre usage by target groups 
(concessionary users) (Workington and Wave) 

Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High -
New for 
2019/20

5000 3540 R p 17778
Numbers at Workington continue to be high, the new Wave gym is going well in it's first 
4 - 6 months of opening but has had limited use by this particular target group (figures 
are for the gym only).

Economic opportunity and growth

Stronger and healthier communities

P
age 57



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19

Q4

2018/19
Annual 
value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q1 commentary

KCS04e Leisure Centre usage by target groups (60+) 
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High -
New for 
2019/20

64900 76307 G p 263434 Q1 target achieved

KCS04f Leisure Centre usage by target groups (juniors) 
Charles 
Holmes

Monthly High -
New for 
2019/20

68700 71260 G p 281833 Q1 target achieved

KHH04a
% of homeless decisions made within guideline 56 
days

Paul Wood Monthly High 100% 100% 100% 100% G tu 100% All decisions made within the statutory guidelines

KHH04b
% of successful homeless preventions and relief 
outcomes

Paul Wood Quarterly High -
New for 
2019/20

50% 64% G p 50% Above target

KHH09* % of programmed private water supplies sampled
Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 95% 95% 100.0% 100.0% G p 100% On target - at expected point in sampling programme for the year.

KHH10
% of food safety inspections carried out (Category 
A-B)

Sharon 
Sewell

Quarterly High 90% 86% 100% 80% R q 100%
One Category B inspection was not carried out in Q1. Workload to be reassessed to 
ensure A and B category premises are inspected within target time

KCTC01a
Time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims 
(no. of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 13 13 15 9 G p 15 Significantly better than target 

KCTC01b
Time taken to process Council Tax new claims (no. 
of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 14 14 15 14 G tu 15 Better than target 

KCTC02
Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax 
change of circumstances (no. of days)

Paul Wood Monthly Low 2 3 4 3 G q 4 Better than target 

KCS01* 
(NI192)

% of household waste sent for recycling
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly High 26.8% 33.4% 41.8% 43.6% G p 36.0% Q4 figures have not yet been agreed with CCC, estimate provided

KCS02* 
(NI191)

Kg of household waste sent to landfill
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 125.38 585.09 132.00 128.20 G q 560.00 Q4 figures have not yet been agreed with CCC, estimate provided

KCS06 Incidents of fly tipping
Charles 
Holmes

Quarterly Low 242 927 225 135 G p 900
We have seen a reduction on the previous quarter and fewer incidents than same period 
last year.

Quality places to live

P
age 58



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19

Q4

2018/19
Annual 
value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q1 commentary

KHH01 No. of affordable homes facilitated by the Council Nik Hardy Quarterly High 24 79 12 11 A q 70

During Q1 11 units were delivered in cockermouth, Seaton and Wigton. This total 
includes 4 open market homes purchased by Home Group and switched to intermediate 
shared ownership homes. The number of affordables homes delivered are determined by 
the developer output as opposed to being a performance related target as such, the 
Council has limited control of the delivery rates.

KDS03 No. of housing units granted planning permission
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 61 488 107 47 R q 429

There are still some major applications held in abeyance (at the agent's requests) e.g. 
Seaton, Cockermouth Fire Offices and Ashfield Road additions. There was also a major 
app refused by members at Panel (Low Road, Cockermouth despite officer 
recommendation for approval).

KDS04 No. of new housing completions
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 337 337 84 77 A q 339 We make efforts to facilitate completions but are limited in the scope of our influence.

KDS08
Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building 
Control)

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 87% 91% 85% 86% G q 85%

May performance affected by staff resourcing issues inc leave and bedding in of new 
trainees. We then had assistance from an Agency worker which improved performance 
in June. There will be a need to maintain June's performance in Q2 without the Agency 
worker.

KGOV01
% of Local Land Charges Searches carried out 
within 10 working days

Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 99.42% 99.46% 95.00% 100.00% G p 95.00% On target

KHH07a
% of Disabled Facilities Grants approved within 12 
weeks from receipt of referral to approval 

Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 75% 77% 85% 91% G p 85%
29 Grants were approved in Q1. Only 3 were outside of the 12 week KPI
N.B. 2018/19 figures were based on 10 week processing time

KHH06 No. of Empty Homes Grants completed
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Quarterly High 1 6 1 1 G tu 10
1 Empty Homes grant complete and occupied. There has been a delay in starting to 
process Empty Homes Grants in Maryport, Discussions to be held with new Executive 
member.

Transformation and corporate health

KCTC05 Abandoned calls rate (%) Paul Wood Monthly Low 9% 8% 7% 19% R q 7%

During this period there has been a significant increase in customer contact, much of 
which has been generated by changes to the waste service.  During Q1 last year 
customer service answered 19,310 calls, in Q1 this year there were 29,281 telephone 
calls as well as a corresponding increase in customer complaints, myAllerdale reports and 
face to face visits. This increase in customer contact has impacted the speed of answer 
and the abandoned call rate. Over 15,000 customers took advantage of the free call back 
service offered, in the previous year it was only 2,800, this service positively mitigated 
the negative impact on the customer experience by removing the need for our customers 
to queue waiting for their call to be answered.

KCTC06 Customer service satisfaction score Paul Wood Quarterly High 89% 92% 85% 98% G p 85%

Following the increased call volumes related to the changes in the waste and recycling 
service all customer service staff resource was diverted to dealing with inbound 
customer contact and outbound customer service satisfaction survey calls were 
suspended after only 6 surveys completed  so the sample size for this indicator is not 
reflective of customer satisfaction 

P
age 59



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19

Q4

2018/19
Annual 
value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q1 commentary

KCTC07 Average no. of website unique page views per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 4736 3188 3000 4340 G q 3000
The website has been integral to providing information residents and businesses at a 
busy time. Performance has not been affected in spite of high demand caused by the 
changes to bin collections and the election.

KCTC08 Average no. of Facebook likes per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 3315 2529 2000 3863 G p 2000 The number of likes has increased considerably in this quarter.

KCTC09 Average no. of Twitter followers per day Nik Hardy Monthly High 6568 6427 6000 6696 G p 6000 The number of Twitter followers has continued to grow.

KCTC10a Average no. of ICT Support calls logged per day Paul Wood Monthly Low 16 19 20 16 G tu 20 Maintaining a low number of calls due to reliability and stability of systems

KCTC11 % of ICT support calls resolved within SLA Paul Wood Monthly High 90% 90% 90% 90% G tu 90%
The nature of calls are changing. Calls are becoming more complex as automation of 
services are being implemented. As the team is reduced to 2, holidays also affect SLA 
adherence

KCTC12a
Overall percentage of time systems available for 
use

Paul Wood Monthly High 99.9% 99.9% 99.9% 99.2% A q 99.9%
Overall system availability remained high, even with the outages. Remedial actions are 
being implemented to alleviate issues should a failure occur in the future

KCTC13* NNDR collection rate Paul Wood Monthly High 98.58% 98.58% 31.12% 30.84% A q 98.20%
Performance can fluctuate on a monthly basis, however perfomance is closely monitored 
and based on previous years collection patterns still expected to achieve target by end of 
the year

KCTC14* Council Tax collection rate Paul Wood Monthly High 97.46% 97.46% 29.75% 29.67% A q 97.80%

Performance can fluctuate on a monthly basis, especially as more customers chose to 
spread payments over 12 months instead of 10, however perfomance is closely 
monitored and based on previous years collection patterns still expected to achieve 
target by end of the year

KFS01 % invoices paid in 30 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 98.2% 97.8% 98.0% 95.6% A q 98.0%

In Q1 we paid 95.6% of their national suppliers within 30 days, this compares 
unfavourable with the same Q 2018/19 when 97% was achieved. April 2019 figures were 
slightly down on April 2018 due to Easter falling in middle of April compare to end of 
March in 2018. Q1 was also impacted by the need for the Community Services and 
Elections resources to be re-directed to departmental issues

KFS06a
% of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of 
invoicing

Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly High 55% 58% n/a 54% n/a q n/a
Debts collected within 28 days have decreased due to CCC Recycling Credits (506,813.86) 
and Sellafield (430,000.00) - 3 invoices in total but large amounts

KFS06b % of debt outstanding for over 90 days
Catherine 
Nicholson

Monthly Low 38.0% 30.0% n/a 13.0% n/a q n/a
Percentage for debts over 90 days has reduced due to some large amount invoices being 
raised in earlier financial months

KEG04 Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio
Kevin 
Kerrigan

Monthly High 93.0% 93.0% 90.0% 93.0% G tu 90.0% Remains above target with a low level of vacancies.

KPR01
Average no. of working days lost to sickness 
absence per employee per annum

Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly Low 12.72 12.50 7.00 5.40 G p 7.00
Figures now better than target through large reduction of long term sickness absence 
cases. Increase in wellbeing initiatives such as counselling services have assisted.

KPR06 % of workforce with zero absence
Sharon 
Sewell

Monthly High 88% 89% 90% 92% G p 90% Above target

P
age 60



PI no. PI name
Head of 
Service

Frequency Good is?
2018/19

Q4

2018/19
Annual 
value

2019/20
Q1 target

2019/20
Q1 value

RAG Q1 DOT Q1
2019/20
Annual 
target

Q1 commentary

Definitions

RAG
R Significantly worse than target (usually >10% from target) – urgent action required to improve performance
A Within agreed tolerance of target (usually up to 10% from target) - some action may be required to improve performance
G On, or better than, target

DOT Direction of travel arrows indicate whether performance since the last comparable period has become:
p Better
tu Stayed the same
q Worse

'Comparable period' - this is usually the previous month or quarter.  

* For a few indicators we compare back to the previous year's comparable quarters (these are KHH09, KCTC13, KCTC14, KCS01, KCS02)

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 62



Appendix C - Corporate risk and issues log (risk scores >9) @ 13/8/19

ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
As

su
ra

nc
e

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
Ac

tio
ns

 p
la

nn
ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

35 Significant unbudgeted expenditure arising 
from severe weather conditions.

Further deterioration of sea defences and impact on 
low lying coastal properties and land.
Landslips occuring following severe weather
Cost of business disruption e.g. NNDR collection
Increase cost of business as usual services and 
customers as resource is used to support 

4 4 16 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Extent of damage identified and external funding opportunities being explored 
Report produced identifying issues and options and circulated to Director
Where works are required to be undertaken, these are recorded and costs estimated to ensure that 
financing can be identified, either from external sources identified by the finance sub-group or from 

 Allerdale BC's budget and internal resources. 

Action has been taken to address highest risk area.  Finance Sub-group set up (following Storm 
Desmond) to idenitfy additional funding for recovery phase - NOW DISBANDED
Capital bid for 19/20 for outstanding works to Mill Field.

2 2 4

59 Failure to implement the Arcus platform 
across Planning, Building Control, EH, 
Licesning. There have been ongoing issues 
with the company implementing the 
system due to lack of resource, this has 
resulted in failure to meet any deadlines 
to go live with the system in any area.

Currently running on legacy systems which are 
maintained on a pay as you go rather than contractual 
support arrangement.

Failure to acheieve savings detailed in the business 
case, loss of confidence with staff, increased costs and 
a drain on resources.

4 4 16 Wood, Paul Revised project plan produced. Shadow project established to investigate procurement of alternative 
system.

Revised project plan and refocused project team now set up.  Clear plan to move forward and address 
any implementation issues.  

0

4 Failure to continue providing value for 
money for expenditure

Inability to fulfil statutory obligations. Cease 
discretionary services. Cannot succeed as a council.  
Unable to achieve plans, loss of key staff and or 
services, further use of reserves. Waste due to 
inefficient processes.

4 3 12 Frost, Ian 5 Year sustainability plan agreed by Executive.  Reserves above minimum level. Star Chamber approach 
adopted to improve accountability and responsibility for budget management. Tailor made financial 
workshops for budget holders quarterly.  Budget timetable and reporting managed effectively. Forecasting 
out puts examined and challenged at SMT regularly.  Increasing demand for monthly performance 
indicator information at SMT monthly to drive efficiency and effectiveness. Sector advisors – treasury 
guidance. Reducing spend programme – monitored.
The Commercial and Commissioning Boards should drive cost and time performance information relating 
to value for money and productivity. This should include detailed business cases and options appraisals to 
support informed decision making.                                                        
Council plan projects and new areas of business activity should be subject to a structured options 
appraisal using the programme office methodology to encourage innovation and the consideration of 
alternative business and delivery models. Projects should include clear measurable, agreed outputs to 
demonstrate the value added by the expenditure.     Risk information in the Corporate Risks and Issues Log 
should be refreshed on an ongoing basis as changes occur to ensure it reflects current risk management 
activities. A risk evaluation of the high risks (red) should be completed by the Senior Management Team 
monthly. 
Minimum reserve position and self sufficiency targets monitored and reviewed by S151 Officer on risk basis

SMT are developing an Organisational Development Plan to support the drive for efficiency and growth. 
Value for Money will be a key driver for these plans. 1. Transformation Board manages the budget. 2. In 
service review. 3. Improvement Workshops - SMT to pilot. 4. Elaine to design - 
commisioning/procurement training.

3 3 9

14 Business continuity plans do not meet 
business needs

The Council does not comply with its duties as a 
Category 1 Responder under CCA. Priority services are 
not maintained,. Resulting in bad publicity and loss of 
confidence in management,  delayed income 
collection, increased unbudgeted expenditure costs.

4 3 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Cloud based Business continuity software has been implemented, accessible from any internet capable 
device, relevant staff have received training on its use. Departmental plans combined into central Business 
Continuity plan containing sections for dealing with Initial Incident actions, Communications, Recovery and 
Restoration phases, together with managing impact on the Council. Business interruption insurance 
relating to specified supplier investigated and amendments to cover made.  
Business recovery plan template has been updated to capture additional information about resource 
requirements for priority services, details of staff to be relocated to Solway House and other potential 
locations and has been circulated to Heads of Service.

Management
 i.Standing item on SMT agenda
 ii.Heads of Service tasked with ensuring that their department’s plans are brought up to date, and 

regularly monitored.
 iii.Named member(s) of staff from each department iden fied as being responsible for collec ng and 

updating information to the Business Continuity site.
 iv.Regular mee ngs scheduled with Emergency Planning officer to co-ordinate responses & 

requirements.

Operational
 i.All staff and members have access to the plans from a link on the Intranet Homepage (Resources – 

Corporate - Business Continuity).
 ii.Standing item on all team mee ngs agendas.
 iii.Team mee ngs to be revisited by lead officer to emphasise the need for all members of staff to be 

aware of the Business Continuity Plan, and how it affects their role.
Teams visited to date, Financial Services, Asset Management, Place Development & Housing 
management team, Legal & Licensing, Electoral Services, Assurance & Audit, Democratic Services, HR, 
Food Safety & Occupational Health, Environmental Protection

3 3 9

P
age 63



ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
As

su
ra

nc
e

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
Ac

tio
ns

 p
la

nn
ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

48 Inability to deliver the council plan due to 
the consequences of Brexit 

strategic priorities are not met
improvements are not made
lives in allerdale are not improved
cannot deliver value for money
reduced growth

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Scenario planning session completed with Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager.

Ongoing monitoring of policy developments by the Policy Team and discussion at policy team management 
meetings. 

Internal working group has been established including representatives from across the Council 

Key Officers must remain part of discussions with stakeholders
The situation will be monitored through the Strategy, Policy and Performance team
Information updates from professional bodies should be shared with SMT on a regular basis
Identify strategy setting groups and ensure we are part of these discussions.
Involve more people in the information updates.

4 3 12

51 Potential risk to the delivery of major 
schemes due to reduced levels of public 
regeneration funding

Inability to progress major regeneration schemes 
resulting in failure to safeguard or create employment 
opportunities

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Ongoing dialogue wtih relevant funding bodies and stakeholders. 1. Continuation of dialogue with key stakeholders and funding bodies.
2. Identification of other possible means to delivery including alternative economic develompent models.
3. Potential private sector funding.

0

52 Failure to establish cost effective waste 
and recycling service in Allerdale, 
delivering to the needs of the local 
community. 

The new business delivery model that has been 
commissioned has resulted in signficant service 
failings. There is a neccesity to revisit the business 
delivery model and resource requirements to enable 
these key services to be delivered. Failure to identify 
and deliver a new model will have a signficant impact 
on the business of the Council. 

4 4 16 Seekings, 
Andrew

Members will be provided with all options prior to making a decision on the proposed new business 
delivery model. This will be developed fully through the preparation of a detailed costed business case.

Full options appraisal is being developed for the Council to consider and agree, following which a 
detailed business case will be developed to establish the operating model and costs of the new model.

4 1 4

53 Move to 75% retention of business rates 
(prev 100%) - and the delay from 2019/20 
to 2020/21 - depending on new parliament

Impact on the medium term financial plan.
Potential loss of growth depending on re-sets
Difficulty in planning for growth and retaining income

3 4 12 Nicholson, 
Catherine

Whole scheme has now been delayed due to the snap general election.
Awaiting Queens Speech - new legislation
Consultation out Dec 18 as part of provisional settlement 19/20

Continued membership of Cumbria NNDR group
LG futures events for updates
Consultations and DCLG statements
Pilot potential will be reported to Executive Council in January 2018. - 
Unsuccessful in the 2018/19 pilot application but have resubmitted our bid for a 75% pilot in 19/20

NOT awarded PILOT - but new Cumbria Wide pool agreed for 2018/19

3 3 9

54 Failure to manage and maintain a secure 
information systems network

Service outage, loss of data, business disruption, 
reduced trust from stakeholders, cyber crime, 
information lost or stolen, regulatory fines, regulatory 
investigation, failure to provide customer service, loss 
of income.

4 3 12 Wood, Paul Measures
Annual Independent penetration and internal vulnerability health check.   
Systems migrated to the cloud - office 365, Service Desk, Parking, Telephony, Contact Centre, Customer 
Platform, Council Spatial Systems and Website.
ICT Policies replaced and deployed, GDPR security and data management training provided.
PSN Health check and remedial actions undertaken
Malware solutions updated to protect against latest vulnerabilities
Identity and Access Management Tools being implemented to secure access to cloud based applications

Mitigation Plans
 1. Cloud Migra on con nues
 2. Review to be undertaken of Backup Solu ons
 3.Further Awareness and educa on program being rolled out to all of our people through new ways of 

working  sessions
 4.Iden ty and Access Management Solu ons to be implemented to protect access to cloud based 

systems
 5.New means to connect to applica ons reducing requirements for specific device configura ons in test 

currently

4 2 8

55 Information is not managed in line with 
policy, procedure and regulatory 
requirements.  Failure to deliver the 
requirements of the Data Protection 
Regulations.

1. Breach of GDPR & financial implications. 2. 
Reputation, trust & confidence. 3. Fines. 4. 
Commercial sensitive information. 5. Damage to 
relationship with partners we work with possibly 
won't work with us again. 6. Potential loss of staff 
through dismissal. 7. ICO investigation. 8. Loss/misuse 
of personal data. 9. Loss of business time. 10. Could 
be put into special measures. 11. Substantial fine 12. 
Potential fraud.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik  1.SMT support
 2.Data Protec on communica on plan adopted
 3.Updated Informa on Governance policies & procedures
 4.Corporate informa on audit carried out
 5.DPIA procedure adopted
 6.DPO/SIRO appointed
 7.Lawful basis for processing personal data iden fied
 8.Reviewed how we seek, record & manage consent
 9.Reviewed legacy contracts
 10.Reviewed & updated Privacy No ces
 11.Devised process to ensure Rights of Individuals’ are maintained
 12.Data breach management process  observed by all staff
 13.Mandatory data protec on and GDPR e-learning for all staff  

 1.Compliance monitoring to be undertaken
 2.Further training for Tier 3 Managers
 4.Ensure all new contracts are future proof and GDPR compliant
 5.Tighten up data sharing arrangements

4 2 8

56 Potential Local Government 
Reorganisation in Cumbria could create 
uncertainty around the future and affect 
the ability of the Council to deliver the 
Council plan

The Council could face an uncertain future that may 
affect the ability of the Council to deliver against 
existing ambitions. This may be because of political, 
and financial uncertainty.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik Participation in any discussions around the future of Local Government in Cumbria.

Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context around Local Government reorganisation. 

1. Participate in wider discussions around Local Government reorganisation in Cumbria

2 Ongoing monitoring of the wider policy context by the Strategy, Policy and Performance team.

0

P
age 64



ID Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Im
pa

ct
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Ri
sk

 S
co

re

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
As

su
ra

nc
e

M
iti

ga
tin

g 
Ac

tio
ns

 p
la

nn
ed

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Im

pa
ct

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

Po
st

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
Ri

sk
 S

co
re

58 Mental Health and Wellbeing of our 
Workforce deteriorates

Reduced levels of Customer Service
Reduced productivity
Staffing costs increase
Cannot deliver organisational objectives

4 3 12 Seekings, 
Andrew

Occpational Heath Provider and Counselling Service in place
Wellbeing / mindfulness sessions ran weekly
Absence management process in place and reviewed

Review of health provider provision
Visit local businesses to understand how sickness is managed elsewhere
Complete pulse surveys to identify causes
Provide managers additional training 
use of alternative therapies

4 1 4

13 Business rates collected fall below baseline 
funding

Less cash income and more reliance on reserves. 
Unable to balance budget. Further service cuts.

3 3 9 Nicholson, 
Catherine

In house Revs and Bens team monitor collection rates and report back to  Head of Finance to provide early 
warning. Existing award of business rate reliefs policy in place but based on system before localisation of 
NNDR.  Cumbria wide group established with Cumbria County Council taking the lead role on the pool with 
specialist advice. Regular meetings are held between all members of the pool to discuss the business rates 
income projections and to highlight any significant issues that are relevant to the pool and/or individual 
authorities. 
Monitoring currently in place is reviewed and changes/enhancements are discussed between relevant 
parties and where necessary actioned. 
The Allerdale sub-group has been set up and has now had a number of meetings to discuss potential 
growth, decline and any other relevant topics, members include revenues, planning, finance, economic 
growth and membership is reviewed to make sure it remains fit for purpose. 

 1.  Working with Revs and Bens Shared Service to develop more enhanced monitoring  eg top 20 rates 
payers, those in appeal etc.   
 2.  Update of discretionary rate reflief planned
3. Set up Buiness Rates Working Group

3 2 6

18 Failure to align adequate people resources 
to council strategic priorities. 

Strategic Priorities and associated outcomes are not 
delivered
Transformation programme is not delivered.
Services fail to grow or be as efficient as required.

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

Review of performance management framework ensures that key issues and challenges facing the Council 
drives Council Plan and service plan priorities.  
Agreed Programmes and project approach is taken to delivering Council Plan and regular monitoring of 
budgets and performance is in place.

 •Review OD strategy - complete, ac on plan to be agreed
 •Review WGLL with managers group - complete
 •Performance against strategic priori es monitored on a regular basis at SMT - ongoing

Strengths assessment approach to recruitment and retention

3 2 6

22 Increased number of families in poverty Quality of life reduced, decreased customer 
satisfaction, reduced life expectancy. 

3 3 9 Seekings, 
Andrew

1. Development and delivery of the Tackling Poverty Strategy. 

2. Local poverty statistics monitored annually through the key issues paper  

1. Set up Delivery Board to oversee delivery by 30/4/18 - COMPLETE. 
2. Develop delivery plan for the Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan 2018-20 by 30/6/18 - COMPLETE. 
3. Deliver Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan Delivery Plan by March 2020.  
4. Further develop activity to ensure that tackling inequality and poverty is considered across the 
organisation in business planning and decision making through awareness raising and develop better use 
of impact assessments by Sept 2019. 
5. Review delivery through quarterly Delivery Board.

3 3 9

32 Failure to engage community in the 
planning process. 

Delays and costs associated with objections and 
challenges to planning applications and site 
allocations. Impact on delivery of the Council's growth 
ambitons for housing and employment land. Adverse 
impact on the Council's reputation. Impact on Council 
Tax, NNDR and New Homes Bonus received. 

3 3 9 Kerrigan, 
Kevin

Improved community consultation and engagement.
Member engagement in development of Local Plan through Planning Policy Working Group.
Training for Development Panel members - including applications review workshops. 
Appropriate level of detail in Development Panel reports.
Regular planning case mangement meetings
Wording of planning application correspondence reviewed.
Appeal decision reviews circulated to members. 
Moved to 4 week cycle for Development Panel with morning sessions focussed on member training, 
application review workshops and the introduction of pre-application engagement with developers on 
major schemes. 
The Planning and Building Control Manager has met with Town and Parish Councils to better understand 
their concerns and explain the role of the planning system. 

Consider development in the following areas 1. Community email/newsletter that people sign up to to 
get more information. 2. publicise the decision highlighting the process/grounds for objections. 3. more 
social media communication. 4. give public facing staff a route to feedback from conversations within the 

 community - concepts to be developed . 

2 2 4

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 66



Allerdale Borough Council

Executive – 4 September 2019 

Review of Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Policy

The Reason for the Decision To ensure that the Council has an up to date Self-
Build and Custom Housebuilding (SBCB) policy, 
and details of how the Self-Build and Custom 
Housebuilding register will be administered.

Summary of options considered This is a review of the current policy and the 
Executive may:

1. Introduce the updates to the policy with 
amendments to local connection and removal 
of the charging policy for inclusion on the 
Council’s Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding 
register;

2. Do nothing and continue to impose a charging 
fee and retain the original local connection test.

Recommendations 1. That Members consider the report and 
approve the changes to the policy for Self-
Build Custom Housebuilding, which 
removes the charging policy in section 5.0 
and 5.3 and makes a minor amendment to 
section 5.1 relating to local connection

2. That the Council continues to support the 
small grants programme to households on 
part one of the register 

Financial /  Resource Implications The funding received from Central Government is 
being utilised for grants for the Self-build and 
Custom Housebuilding. This is being managed 
within existing staffing resources.

Legal / Governance Implications The Self-build and Customer House Building Act 
2015 placed a duty on the Council to maintain a 
register.

Community Safety Implications None

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

EIA completed September 2019

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Wards Affected All Wards excluding National Park.

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Supporting the housing needs of local people by 
improving access to self-build housing, and thus 
creating sustainable communities.  This policy will 
support the development of the right homes in the 
right places and support well planned growth.

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Councillor Marion Fitzgerald
Councillor Stephen Stoddart

Lead Officer Andrea Smith, Policy Manager (Housing)

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).
Community Safety N Financial Y
Legal Y Partnership N
Social Inclusion N Asset Management N
Equality Duty N Health and Safety N
Employment (internal) N Employment 

(external to the Council)
N

Background papers ………………………………………………………………………………

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This policy was approved by the Executive in October 2018. In doing so the 
Executive also requested that the policy was reviewed in 12 months in order to 
better understand the impact and benefits of the local connection test and the 
demand from outside of the area.  The Policy maintains a local connection test 
but with a minor amendment to the qualifying period for local connection through 
previous residency.  It removes the charging policy and continues to include a 
financial viability test against a person’s ability to be able to purchase land and 
take forward a self-build development within the self-build custom housebuilding 
programme.

2.0 Content (to include alternative options considered) 

2.1  Custom Housebuilding and Self-Build are terms used interchangeably.  Custom 
housebuilding is when a person commissions a specialist developer to help to 
deliver their own home, while Self-Build is where a person is more directly 
involved in organising and constructing their home.

2.2 The aim of the policy is to recognise the statutory requirement of the Council, and 
to support ambitious households wishing to build their home in Allerdale, creating 
high quality, value for money housing that helps increase diversity in the market.  

Page 68



2.3 This programme is supported, by the housing policy team, who manage the 
Council’s register and can provide interested parties and groups on part 1 of the 
register with advice and support on land and serviced plots that may be available 
for development.  The team have been managing this register since 2015.

2.4 In March 2015, the Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 was enacted 
by Parliament. This Act placed a duty on local authorities to keep a register of 
individuals, and associations of individuals, who wish to acquire serviced plots of 
land, to bring forward self-build and custom housebuilding projects, and placed a 
duty on those authorities to have regard to those registers in carrying out 
planning and other functions.

2.5 On 1st April 2016, the Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Register     
Regulations 2016 came into force. These regulations introduced definitions of a 
serviced plot of land, registers kept under the Act and exemptions from the duty.

2.6 On 31 October 2016, two further sets of regulations came into force, the        
Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding (Time for Compliance and Fees) 
Regulations 2016 and the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 
2016.

2.7 These regulations also introduced the ability for local authorities to charge a fee 
for applications to the Register to cover reasonable costs incurred in maintaining 
the Register and delivering permissions for serviced plots to meet the demand on 
the Register.

2.8 In order to enable local authorities to implement the Register, and its subsequent 
requirements for planning permission of serviced plots, the Government has 
granted local authorities New Burdens funding. An initial one-off payment of 
£5,850 was made in 2016 to help authorities establish their Registers, and the 
Government has committed to give each local authority with a Register a further 
£90,000 over the period 2016-2020 as set out in the table below.

 Year Amount 
2016/17 £15,000
2017/18 £30,000
2018/19 £30,000
2019/20 £15,000
Total £90,000

2.8.1 The one off payment and the year 1 funding was not ring fenced and was utilised 
on other council spend.  From 2017 onwards, this funding (£75K) has been ring 
fenced for SBCB.  Some of the new burdens funding has since been utilised to 
temporarily increase officer time (2018/19) to support the setting up a grant 
project for SBCB housing development, promotional materials, a SBCB event, 
attendance of other national events/conferences and funding of the Council’s 
membership to the Northern Housing Consortium.  

Page 69



The remainder of the grant funding will be used for grant awards to support future 
developments, and in-turn the impact of offering up grant funding will generate 
more housing in the borough and an income for the Council through Council Tax.

2.9 The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 (the second set that 
came into force on 31st October) updated how a local authority might assess 
eligibility for entry on the Register, introducing the option of local eligibility criteria 
that a local authority might set that could include a local connection test and/or 
criteria that demonstrate whether an applicant has sufficient resources to 
undertake a self or custom build project. 

The Regulations also introduced the idea of a Part 1 and Part 2 of the Register to 
distinguish between applicants with and without a local connection. The 
Regulations do not require the Council to ensure planning permission is granted 
for sufficient serviced plots to meet the demand on Part 2 of the Register (i.e. that 
is only required for the demand evidenced by Part 1).

2.10 The project has now been set up and is now able to be managed within existing 
staffing resources and therefore at no additional cost to the Council.  A 
programme was introduced in 2018, to support the delivery of SBCB. This 
includes the introduction of a small grants programme.

2.11 The Council is required to continue to maintain the SBCB register beyond 2020 
when the new burdens funding ends.  

2.12 Small Grants

As part of the SBCB funding, we offer small grants to households on part one of 
the register to assist them with obtaining advice and financial support for gaining 
planning permission and building control services.  A small grant of up-to of 
£2,000 is available.  Additional grant funding may be awarded over the £2,000 if 
any further costs are incurred by the applicant, in relation to their planning or 
building control fees.

The Council will also consider awarding grant funding for retrospective 
applications where planning permission has been approved and or building 
control fees have been paid using Allerdale Borough Council’s services and who 
can demonstrate that they would have been eligible to be on Part 1 of the 
register.  Respective permission will only be awarded from when the original 
policy was agreed by Members in October 2018.

3.0 Proposed Policy Changes

3.1 The new policy as agreed in October 2018 set out three key areas that support 
the Local Authority to meet its legislative requirements

 Local connection test

 Financial viability assessment

 Charging fee

The policy also set out the introduction of a small grants fund from new burdens 
funding received up to 2020. 

Page 70



3.2 The introduction of a local connection test meant that applicants would be 
required to meet the following criteria:

- Resident in Allerdale for at least 12 months

- No longer residing in Allerdale but was a resident for at least one of the last 
three year

- Family association with an existing resident of at least 12 months residence in 
Allerdale.  Family association is defined as spouse, civil partner, parent, 
children and sibling.  We will also allow family association through marriage 
e.g step parents, children and siblings.

- Permanent employment in Allerdale or acceptance of the offer of 
employment.

3.3 We have reviewed section 5.1 (the local connection test) of the policy (Appendix 
A), and it is proposed that we make a minor amendment to the resident test from 
‘no longer being resident in Allerdale but was a resident at least one of the last 
three years’ to ‘one of the last five years’.  This change will provide more 
flexibility, particularly for those who have been out of the area for longer than the 
three year period, and greater opportunity to access the grant funding available. 

3.4 Following the introduction of a new charging policy in 2018, (Government 
regulations, which provides the local authority the ability to charge a fee for 
applications to the Register to cover reasonable costs incurred by the local 
authorities in maintaining the Register and in delivering permissions for services 
plots to meet the need and demand on the Register) the Council notified 
individuals of the introduction of this policy.  However, all of those registered took 
the decision to withdraw their interest in being on the Council register, and we 
have had no further interest while the charging fee has been in place.

In November 2018, a SBCB event was well attended; however, none of the 
attendees chose to register an interest either.  We believe the introduction of a 
charging policy has influenced their decision.

Other Local Authorities across the Country that introduced a charging policy have 
experienced the same issues as we have.

We have recently carried out more promotional work and this has generated new 
enquiries, but we believe that the charging fee is potentially creating a barrier for 
people taking their enquiry further.  

3.5 In light of some of the challenges with the current charging policy we have 
reviewed section 5.3 of the policy (Appendix A) and we feel that by removing this, 
the interest of being on the SCBC register will attract more applicants, and in 
particular where there is grant funding available towards the cost of planning and 
building control fees.

4.0 Recommendations

4.1 That the Council considers the report and approves the changes to the policy for 
Self-Build Custom Housebuilding, which removes the charging policy and makes 
a minor amendment to local connection.

Page 71



4.2 That the Council continues to support the small grants programme to households 
on part one of the register.

5.0 Conclusion

5.1 This policy seeks to continue to manage a register as set out in the legislation 
and that the Council has an agreed approach in which to manage applications 
beyond the funding timeframe.  

Andrea Smith
Policy Manager (Housing)

Page 72



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

Self-Build and Custom 
Housebuilding Register Policy

- September 2019 

 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit”
Page 73



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

Document title Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy
Document author Andrea Smith
Who is accountable for 
this policy/strategy? Andrea Smith, Policy Manager (Housing)

Current version no. V2.0
Effective from date
Approval body Executive
Approval date
Review frequency Bi-annually
Next review due September 2020
Is the document 
confidential? No

Revision History

Date Version Summary of Changes   
Keep VERY brief Section(s) Changed

October 2018 1.0 New policy

September 
2019 2.0

Review of policy and minor 
amendments made to the 
local connection test and 
removal of chairing policy 

Equalities Impact Assessment This must be done each time a policy/strategy is 
fundamentally revised

Assessment date July 2019
Assessment 
location

This is a reviewed policy, which seeks to maintain a local 
connection test, financial viability assessment.

Page 74



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The draft Allerdale Borough Council Local part 2, policy SA4 details the 
council’s policy towards Self-build and Custom Build housing.

1.2 This policy describes how the Council will manage the Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding register.

1.3 The Allerdale Borough Council register does not cover the Lake District 
National Park, who have their own register.   

1.4 This policy is being reviewed  following the introduction of the Self-build and 
Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, and sets out three key areas that support 
Local Authorities to meet its legislative requirements

 Local connection test
 Financial viability assessment
 Charging fee

2.0 Legislative and national policy context

2.1  In March 2015, the Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 was 
enacted by Parliament. This Act placed a duty on local authorities to keep a 
register of individuals, and associations of individuals, who wish to acquire 
serviced plots of land, to bring forward self-build and custom housebuilding 
projects and to place a duty on those authorities to have regard to those 
registers in carrying out planning and other functions. 

2.2 On 1st April 2016, the Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding (Register) 
Regulations 2016 came into force. These implemented the requirement for 
local authorities to hold a register of individuals and associations who are 
seeking to acquire serviced plots of land in the authority’s area in order to build 
their own home. 

2.3 Through these Regulations, the Council was required to publicise the ability for 
individuals and associations to apply for entry on the Register, and the 
Regulations and subsequent national planning practice guidance set out what 
eligibility criteria the Council could use to assess those applications. 

2.4 On 31 October 2016, two further sets of regulations came into force, the Self-
Build and Custom Housebuilding (Time for Compliance and Fees) Regulations 
2016 and the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016. 

2.5 The Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding (Time for Compliance and Fees) 
Regulations 2016 placed a requirement on local authorities to grant sufficient 
planning permissions for serviced plots of land for self and custom-build to 
meet the demand evidenced by their Register, specifically to have granted 
these permissions within 3 years of a given base date. 

 

Page 75



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

2.6 These regulations also introduced the ability for local authorities to charge a fee 
for applications to the Register to cover reasonable costs incurred by a local 
authority in maintaining the Register and in delivering permissions for serviced 
plots to meet the demand on the Register. 

2.7 The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 (the second set 
that came into force on 31st October) updated how a local authority might 
assess eligibility for entry on the Register, introducing the option of local 
eligibility criteria that a local authority might set that could include a local 
connection test and/or criteria that demonstrate whether an applicant has 
sufficient resources to undertake a self or custom build project. 

The Regulations also introduced the idea of a Part 1 and Part 2 of the Register 
to distinguish between applicants with and without a local connection. The 
Regulations do not require the Council to ensure planning permission is 
granted for sufficient serviced plots to meet the demand on Part 2 of the 
Register (i.e. that is only required for the demand evidenced by Part 1).

3.0 Local policy context

3.1 The Allerdale Local Plan (Part 1) adopted in July 2014 sets out the strategic 
context for the Allerdale Plan Area and will be complemented by Part 2: Site 
Allocations Document, to be prepared in line with the timescales set in the 
Local Development Scheme.

3.2 The Local Plan (Part 1) contains strategic objectives designed to help in the 
creation of mixed and balanced housing markets.

3.2.1 Strategic Objective SO2a of the Local Plan is to “Enable a balanced 
housing market that delivers a mix of housing type and tenure to meet the 
needs of all communities.”

3.2.2 Strategic Objective SO2c of the Local Plan is to “Ensure a deliverable 
supply of housing land that meets the needs of the community and local 
economy”.

3.3 The Local Plan (Part 2) is at an advanced state of consultation and in the 
document, the Council supports self-build and custom housebuilding.

3.4 The National Planning Policy Framework set out the Government’s planning 
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. Paragraph 50 
means that local authorities must “…deliver a wide choice of high quality 
homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create sustainable, 
inclusive and mixed communities…”

3.5 The Council priority is to support the housing need of local people by 
improving access to self-build housing, and thus creating sustainable 
communities.  This policy support the development of the right homes in the 
right places and supports well planned growth.

Page 76



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

3.6 The 2016 Housing Study acts as an evidence base. It identified 152 
households planning to move in the next five years who would be interested in 
self-build, of these 70 households expected to move into a self-build 
property1.  

4.0 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Definition

4.1 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding provides an opportunity for individuals 
or groups of individuals who want to design and build their own homes as an 
alternative to that offered by volume house builders of existing housing stock.

4.2 Self-build is where a person is directly involved in organising and constructing 
their home. Custom housebuilding is where a person commissions a specialist 
developer to help to deliver their own home.

5.0 Scope of the Policy

Section 4 of The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 states that:

An individual is eligible for entry in Part 1 of the register if that individual— 

(a)is aged 18 or over;

(b)is a British citizen, a national of an EEA State other than the United 
Kingdom, or a national of Switzerland;

(c)satisfies any conditions set by the relevant authority under regulation 52;
(d)is seeking (either alone or with others) to acquire a serviced plot of land in 
the relevant authority’s area for their own self-build and custom housebuilding.

Households which meet all the conditions above will be placed on part 1 of the 
Register. Households who meet all the conditions above, excluding part (c) will be 
placed on part 2 of the Register. Households who do not meet parts (a), (b), (d) or 
(e) will not be placed on the Register.

This policy will direct the three key areas which the legislation enables councils to 
set, as follows:

5.1 Local Connection test

The applicant must meet one of the following:

- Resident in Allerdale for at least 12 months

- No longer residing in Allerdale but was a resident for at least one of the 
last five years

1 Part 4.50 of the Allerdale 2016 Housing Study
2 Regulation 5 of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 allows authorities to set 
additional criteria for eligibility

Page 77



Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Policy – V2.0

- Family association with an existing resident of at least 12 months 
residence in Allerdale. Family association is defined as spouse, civil 
partner, parent, children and siblings. We will also allow family 
associations through marriage e.g. step parents, children and siblings.

- Permanent employment in Allerdale or acceptance of the offer of 
employment

5.1.2 The 2016 regulations also specify that any person in the service of the 
regular armed forces of the Crown is deemed to satisfy the local connection 
test whilst in service, and for a period after leaving the service equal to the 
longest of any periods required by the local connection test. This would 
support the Cumbria Armed Forces and Community Covenant, of which 
Allerdale Borough Council is a partner.

5.2 Financial Viability test

5.2.1 The applicant meets the financial viability assessment where they   
provide written evidence of sufficient resources to purchase land.

5.3 Charging Fees

The Council will not impose an administration fee on those wishing to be 
apply to be on the register. 

6.0 Monitoring the Register

6.1 Each September the Council will send a registration form to all those who are 
currently on the register.  
   

6.2 New applications to the register can be made at any time throughout the year, 
Applicants who entered the register before 1 September each year will be 
required to re-register. 

6.3 Individuals or associations entered on the register may apply to amend their 
entry. Applications for amendments should be submitted in writing by the 
individual or the lead member of the association 

6.4 The Council will remove an entry from the register upon receipt of a written 
request from the individual or, in the case of an association, the lead contact.

6.5 The Council may remove an entry from the register if it considers that the 
individual or, in the case of an association, any member of the association on 
the register is no longer eligible for entry on the register. Only the ineligible   
member of an association will be removed from the register.

6.6 Where it is decided to remove an entry from the register, the Council will notify 
the subject of the entry and give reasons for their decision.

Page 78


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Quarter 1 Finance Report April to June 2019
	Appendices A to N for Quarter 1 Finance Report April to June 2019

	7 Council Plan Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1A for Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1B for Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20
	Appendix 1C for Quarter 1 Performance Report 2019/20

	8 Review of Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Policy
	Appendix 1 for Review of Self Build Custom Build Policy


